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KEY UNIVERSITY INFORMATION
AND MANAGEMENT




m Background information

The name Kibabii"

The name “Kibabii’ has profound historical
significance.  The ‘Kibabii’
linguistically finked to one of the local

communities means livestock returning to

wiord

a cowshed or a sanctuary. Symbolically,
the University is a place where people
from all walks of life would come to gather
for purposes of gaining knowledge and
skills, a place of sanctuary from ignorance.
The University is located off Bungoma-
Malaba road, seven kilometers from the
ceniral business district (CBD) of Bungoma
town. The University sits on 28.3 heciares
piece of land.

The History of Kibabii University

The establishment of Kibabii University
{KIBU) is traced to the origins of Kibabii
Teachers’ Training College, the precursor
to the current University. The History of a
Teacher Training College in Kibabii dates
back to the pre-independence period. The
idea was initiated by the Mill Hill Fathers
in 1932. This college trained P4 Teachers
between 1932 and 1942 and F3 between
1958 and 1961 in the current St. Mary's
High School, Kibabii. In 1962 however, the
College was moved to Eregi.

The proposed Kibabii Teachers Training
College in Bungoma South District
remained a mirage for more than twenty
years until 19 September, 2007,
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when the process of actualizing this dream
was inidated. The 3 president of the
Republic of Kenya, His
President Mwai Kibaki graced the ground

Excellency

breaking ceremony at the proposed site.
The construction works at the College
were immediately commenced with the
completion of  construction  and
operationalization date for the college set
for the 25th of May 2011. During this
period, the project employed 700 workers
thus contributing to employment creation
in Bungoma County.

After inanguration, leaders from Bungoma
County requested His Excellency President
Mwai Kibaki to declare the
constructed facilities for Kibabii Diploma

néwl}r

Teachers’ College to be converted to
Kibabii University College. This request
was accepted and formalized by Legal
Notice No. 115 of August 2011 that
established Kibabii University College as a
constituent College of Masinde Muliro
University of Science and Technology.

The journey to becoming a fully-fledged
university was completed on 1dth
November 2015 when Kibabii received
Charter from His Excellency President
Uhuru Eenyaita.



@ Our Identity; Logo and Corporate Colors

The features appearing on the University Logo have the following meanings attached to

them:-

Map of Africa - Kibabi University is in Afriea with
a lat of potential and semething good can come
aut of Alfrica

TR
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L LFTE

The Ribbens - Depicts unlimited creathvity and
resilience
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E Principal Activities

The mandate of the University, as contained in the Kibabii University Charter

(2015) are/is to;

a) Provide directly, or in collaboration with
other institutions of higher learning,
faciliies for university education
including technological, scientific,
professional education and research;

b) Advance knowledge and its practical
application by research, innovation and
other means;

¢) Disseminate the outcomes of research by
various means, and commercially exploit
the results of such research;

d) Participate in technological innovation as
well as in the discovery, creation,
transmission and enhancement of
knowledge, and fto stmulate the
intellectual life in the economic, social,
cultural, scientific, and technological
development/other organizations;

e) Coniribute to industrial
technological development of society in
collaboration and parmership with
industry and other organizations;

f) Develop  quality and relevant
programmes for degrees, diplomas and
certificates;

g) Establish colleges, faculties, schools,
centres, institutes, departments, and
other resources and administrative units
as may be appropriate;

h) Inculcate and promote a culture of
innovation, critical inquiry and creativity
in art, science, technology, engineering,
and education, amongst staff, students,
and society;

i) Develop an institution of excellence in
teaching, training, scholarship,
entrepreneurship, research, consultancy,
community among other

and

BETVICE,
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educational services and products, with
emphasis on technology and its
development, impact and application to
society;

j) Provide a  multi-level system of
education and training that is relevant
to the needs of the community covering
a wide range of fields and levels with
provision for recognition of prior
learning and flexibility of iransition
between educational levels;

k) Provide high quality facilities for

educational, research, residental,
commercial, cultural, social,
recreational, sporting, and other
activities;

1) Facilitate student mobility between

programmes of study at different
universities;

m) Participate in commercial ventures and
activities that promote the objectives of
the institution;

n) Foster the general welfare of staff,
students, and the community;

o) Provide opportunities for development
and further taining for the staff of the
institution;

p) Develop and provide educational,
cultural, professional, technical and
vocational services to the community,
and in particular foster corporate social
responsibility;

q) Facilitate the development, provision,
and expansion of services, programmes,
and other products in ways that are
easily accessible and which reflect the

principles of equity and social justice;



t} Conduct examinations, and grant such t) Promote social-economic development in
academic awards as may be provided for line with the counitry’s development
in the Statutes, and to syndicate agenda; and

examinations

for awards at other u) Ensure University sustainability and

institutions as may be approved by adoptionn of the best practices in

Senate;

University management and

g} Determine who may teach, what may be institutionalization of systems of checks
taught, and how it may be taught in the and balances.

University;

. Technology and Innovation are critical for sustainable
 posterity of the universe

PHILOSOPHY
Kibabii Urtiverstty embodies the vievr that Sciences.

stifization of matarial and human resources for the

MOTTO

Knowledge for Development
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Qur Values

To undertake its mission and realize its vision, Kibabii University upholds the following six
(6) Core values, which are anchored in the acronym EASITA:-

To operationalize the core values, “KIBU aspires to produce scholars who embody
Excellence, Accountability and Transparency, Social responsibility, Innovation, and are of
Integrity while utilizing their Academic freedom in performing their duties”.

i i
Bk L

EXCELLENCE

Thie Uniuassity Skaff shall explain the rationats of
. actiyitiesstons angl suoid any octidns that might arder
[ onany itprallice. . il i

I
!
ACADEMICFREEDOM
Thie Universitysiall encourags the splrit of fresand
erilied theught, and refloctive Insin armong stsdents . e B
and staff. |
|
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FIDUCIARY OVERSIGHT ARRANGEMENTS

Audii and Risk and Compliance Commitize activities

The University council has established a Committee which provides oversight on the Undversiiy's
hmancial and other management as outlined on page xxvii of this report. The University also has an
internal Audit department that reports to the Council Commitiee.

Parliamentary Commitiee activities

The Vice Chancellor i& accountable to the Natonal Assembly for the University's financial
management. The Constitution of Kenya, 2010 135(3) subject to clause (4), requires that the accounts
of all governments and State organs be audited by the Auditor-General. Upon Audit, the Annual
reports and financis] statements are submitted o the Mational Assembly to ascertain whether the
finances of the University were prudently managed.

HEADQUARTERS CONTACTS
Kibabii University Telephone: (254) 020-2028660/
Off Bungoma-Chwele Road 0708-0850034 /0734-831729
gﬁﬂgﬁ;ﬂg - 50200, E-mail: enquiries@kibu.ac.ke
Tel. DED-EDEEE&&D{D?D& 5t Website: www . kibu.ac. ke
JO734-831729

Email: enquiries@kibu.ac ke

BANKERS Family Bank Limited

Bungoma Branch
P, O, Box 1068 - 50200

FKenya Commercial Bank
Bungoma Branch BUNGOMA
P. O. Box 380, 50200 Cooperative Bank of Kenya Limited
BUNGORA Bungoma Branch
P. 0. 1954 - 50200
Barclays Bank Limited BUNGOMA

Bungoma Branch
P. Q. Box 91, 30200

BUNGOMA INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Standard Chartered Bank Kenya Limited Auditor General
Bungoma Branch Kenya National Audit Office
P. O. Box 2531, 50200 Anniversary Towers, University Way
BUNGOMA P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100 Nairobi, Kenya
Equity Bank Limited
Bungoma Branch
Bungocta Basch, PRINCIPAL LEGAL ADVISOR
BUNGOMA

The Attorney General
MNational Bank of Kenya Limited State Law Office
Bungoma Branch Harambee Avenue
P. O, Box 25 - 50200 P.O. Box 40112 City Square 00200
BUNGOMA Nairobi, Kenya
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UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Joined in 2017 as the Chairman of Council. Holds Bachelor of Veterinary Medicine
(UON), MSc. Clinical Studies, Medicine (UON), MBA Strategic Management {Africa
Nazarene University), and PhD Clinical Studies, Epidemiolegy (UON). He has over
24 years of teaching, management and leadership experience working with
University of Nairobi, NGOs, European Union, and USAID Kenya and East Africa.

KIBABI UNIVERSITY | 12
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Mr. Hussein Abdi Farah,
MEMEER

Date of Birth, 28% Aagust 1960,

Joined in 2017 as a Council member.
He is Chairman Awards and Sealing
Committee of Council. Mr. Farah
holds & Certificate in Medical
Laboratory  Technelogy  (MTC,
Kakamega), Diploma in Medical
Laboratory Technology (KMTC,
MNairobi}, MSe, in Medical
Microbiology (LSHTM, UK), and
FPostgraduate Diploma in Medical
Microbiology (LSHTM, UK). He is a
seasoned Microbiologist. His
experience spans over 20 vyears.
Currently, he is the Chief Executive
Officer at Fiveways Medical &
Diagnostic (K) Limitad.
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Mr. Vincent Moseti Nyabiosi,
MEMBER

Date of Birth 28% September 1984,

Joined in 2017 as a Council member.
He iz the Chairman Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee of Council,
Mr. Myabiosi holds a Bachelor of
Laws (Hons) (UoN), Diploma in Law
(KSL), Master of Law, Public Finance
& Financial Services Law (UoN), CPA
and CPS. He has over 10 years'
experience in Tax Management and as
Lecturer at the Strathmore School of
Law. Currently, he is Regional Tax
Manager - East Africa at MIH East
Adfrica Limited.

-
LE



Date of birth: 16% October, 1964

Eng. Mungatana joined in September, 2018.
He is the Chairman Strategy, Finance and
Development Committee of Council. He

holds BSc (Hons) in Mechanical
Engineering  and MBA (Business
Administration) from University of

Nairobi, and currently pursuing PhD in
Business Administration {Supply Chain
Management) at Jomo Kenyatta University
of Agriculture and Technelogy. He is a
Corporate member of the Institute of
Engineers of Kenya (IEK) and a Registered
Engineer (EBK). He is currently the Chief
Technical and Environmental Officer,
Tsavo Power Company Ltd. He has
previously worked for Kenya Pipeline
Company Ltd, Kenya Breweries Company
Ltd and Kenya Power and Lighting
Company Lid.

KIBASN UMIVERSITY
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Dr. Joyce Wanjiru Ngure,
MEMBER

Date of birth: 15th May 1977

Dr. Ngure joined in December, 2018.
She holds a PhD, Vegetable Sciences
(Horticulture), Nanging Agricultural
University, China, Masters in
Horticulture (Olericulture), Egerton
University and BSc in Horticuliure,
Egerton University

She is currently an Assistant Director
Research in the Ministry of
Education in the Directorate of
Research Science and Technology as
well as a Project Coordinator for the
National Physical Scences and
Research Laboratories.




E UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Mr. Michael Jasper Obonyo,
Rep Cabinet Secretary, The
National Treasury, Ex~-Officio

Date of Birth 7 April, 1970,

He joined in August, 2015 as a Coungcil
member. He is highly exverienced in
information communication matters in
areas of public relations. He is
currently Public Relations Officer in
the Pensions Department, MNational
Treasury. Mr Obonyo holds BA.
(Homns) UoN, Kenya (1992), PGD (Mass
Communication) Kenya Institute of
Mass Communication (KIMC), Kenya
(1998) and Master of Arts in
Communication Studies, UoN, Kenya
(2011)
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Mr. Tomn Mboya Wambua,
MEMEBER

Date of birth: 1968

Mir. Mboya joined in December, 2018, He
is & business man and a consultant in
strategic =~ management and  risk
management. He has interests in banking,
insurance, distribution, real estate and
security services. He holds MBA degree,
Bachelor of Commerce both from the
University of Nairobi and currently
pursuing a Ph.[), in Strategic Management
in Jomo Kenyatta University. He is the
Honorary Consular General for Iceland in
Kenya. He is the founder and CEO of
various companies. Previously, he worked
for British American Tobacco Company,
until 2009 when he veniured in to private
business. He has wide international
business exposure.



Mr. Francis Asunah,
MEMBER

Date of Birth, 29 December, 1953,

Joined in 2017 as a member of Council and
Chairman Governance and Human Resource
Committee of the University Council. He is
also the Council representative in the
University Staff Pensions Board of Trustees.
He holds a Bachelor of Science, Geology
(UoN) and Master of Engineering,
Hydrology and Water Resources (IHE Delft,
The Metherlands). Mr. Asunah has broad
expertise of over 30 years in areas of
Hydrology, Geology, Water resources
enginesring, Corporate Governance,
Arbitration & Alternative Dispute Resolution
(ADR) and Environmental management in
both public and private sectors. Currently, he
is @ Technical Advisor at Rural Water &
Sanitation Organization (WATERSAN) and
the Vice = Chairman of the Centre for
Corporate Governance (CCG) Alumni
MNetwork; and a Mediator of the High Court
of Kenya.
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Prof. Isaac Ipara Od
Vice Chancelicr
SECRETARY TO COUNCIL

Date of Birth 19th May, 1955,

Joined in 2013 as the Chief Executive
and Secretary of Council. Helds B.ED
(Arts) (UON), MED (Kenyatta
University}, and PhD (Moi University).
He is an educationist with over 30 years
of teaching experience at institutions of
Higher learning. Prof. Odec has also
held various leadership positions in the
same institubions.



ﬂ Fiduciary Management _

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended
30th June 2020 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Prof. Isaac Iparz Odso
Vice Chancellor

Date of Birth 19th May, 1955,

Joined in 2013 as the Chisf Exscutive
and Secretary of Council. Holds B.ED
(Arts) (UON), MED (Kenyatta
University), and FhD (Moi
University). He is an educatonist
with over 30 vears of teaching
experience at instdtutions of Higher
learning. Prof. Odeo has also held
various leadershup positions in the
same instmaons.
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Srof. Donald Namasakza Siamba
DVC |Administration, Finance
and Development)

Date of Birth 1dth October, 1960,

Joined in 2019 as a member of
Management Board. Holds Bachelor
of Veterinary Medicine (BVM)
(UON), MSe. Vet Pathology &
Microbiology. (UON), and PhD.
Zoology {Parasitology} {(Moai
University). He is an educatonist
with wide research, teaching and
administration experience of over 30
years at research institutions and
institutions of higher learning. Prof.
Siamba has also held various
leadership positons at the same
institutions.
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E Fiduciary Management

Prof. Dr.-Ing. Senedict M, Mutua
Deputy Vice Chancellor (Planning,
Partnerships, Research and Innovation)

Diate of Birth 30th November, 1966,
Joined in 2016 as a member of the
Management Board. He hoids a BSc
(Eng.) (Egerton University), MEng. 5c.
The University of Melbourne Australia,
Ph.D. and Post Doc. (Universitit fur
Bodenkultur-BOKU, Vienna Austria).

He has over 25 years of leaching and
research experience at the umniversity
level. He has held wvarious leadership
positions at Egerton University and been
involved in research projects both at
Matonal and Global levels. He has

special research interests fn Water
Resources Engineering and Applied
Hydrology.
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Ag. Deputy Vice Chancellor
{Academics and Students Affairs)

Frof. Maiyo joined in 2020 as a
member of Management Board.

He holds B.Ed Arts (Economics &
Mathematics) (Moi University) MFhil
Economics of Education and
Management {(Moi University),
Masters in Business Administration
(MBA). Indian School of Business
Management and Administration;
Doctor of Fhilosophy (FhE) in
Education (Interdisciplinary)
University of Pune and has over 15
vears teaching  experience at
institutions of higher learning. He has
also held various leadership positions
at the same



Fiduciary Management

Or. Ruth Atidah Mitalo
Registrar (Administraticn & HR)

Dr. Mitalo joined in January 2020
85 Registrar {Administration &
Human Resource). She holds a
PhD in  Hurman Rasource
Management - Uob, MBA
(Human Resource Management)
- UoM. BBA [Human Resource
PMManagement - Flrst Class
Honours) - KEMU, Ceriified
Public Secretary of Kenya {CPS-
K} and Diploma In Human
Hesource Management
(Technical University of Kenya).
Sha ftas owvar 18  years
administrative and Human
Hesource sxpanencs at
institutions of higher learning.
She is 5 member of the Instituts
of Human Fesource
Management {IHRM) and
Institute of Certified Secretaries
{(1Cs),

Brof. Ernest Sangal Mohochl
Registrar [Academics & Students Affairs)

Jained in 2018 as Registrar (Academic and
Students Affairs), Prof, dMohochi holds a
Bachelor of Arts {Kiswahilll (Egerton
University), Master of (Kiswahili} (Egerton
University} and Ph.D. (Kiswahili} (Egerton
University). He has owver 24 years of
experience in teaching at Institutions of
Highesr Learning.
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ﬂ Fiduciary Management

Registrar (Planning, Partnerships, Research
and Innovation)

Joined in 2018 as Registrar (Partnerships,
Planning & Innovation), Frof. Abonyo
holds a Bachelor Science (Kenyatta
University), Master of Philosophy (Moi)
and Ph.D. (East Carolina University). He
has over 27 wvears of experience in
teaching both at Institutions of Higher
Learning and High School levels.
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Dr. Allce Chemutal Mutai
Dean of Students

Joined in 2019 as Dean of Studenis. She
holds a Bachelor of Education {(Arts)
{Moi University), Master of Philosophy
(M.Phil) in Educational Guidance and
Counselling, (Moi University) and
Doctor of Philosophy in Counselling
Psychology (PhD) (Egerton University).
Dy, Chemutai i5 a member of the Kenya
Universides Professional Counsellors
Association (KUPCA). She has over 29
years’ experience in both students affairs
and [ibrary management in mstitutions

of higher learning.



E Fiduciary Management 4

Frof. Samwel Muous
Diractar, IST

Daie of Birth 10th Octaber, 1964,

Joined in 2014 as Director ICT and
Senior Lecturer in the Department of
Information Technology. He holds a
Master of Science in Computer Based
Information Systemns of the University of
Sunderland and PhD in Informaton
Technology from Masinde Muliro
University of Science and Technoiogy.
He s a Chartered Enginesr and an
assessor  for  Chartered  Engineer
registration for the Engineering Council
(UK). Dr. Mbugua is a member of the
ACM and BCS, He has over 20 vears of
service in  both civil service and
institutions of higher learning.
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Ms. Nduku Charles kiial
Deputy University Librarian

Drate of Birth T1th Augnse, 1973,

Ms. Nduku joined in 2018 as Deputy
Librarian. He holders a Bachelor of
Library and Information Science and
hiaster of Library I[nformation Science
from Kenyatta university. He previously
worked for Jaramogi Oginga Odinga
University of Science &Technology,
South Easternm Kenya University, Kenya
Methodist University and Gikumene
Girls Secondary School libraries. She has
over 20 years work experience in
institutions of higher learning libraries.

i
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Procurement Officer

Date of Birth 29th June, 1970,

Joined in 2018 as Head of Procurement
Department. She holds a Bachelor of Science
Purchasing and Supplies Management and
MSc. Procurement and Logistics both from
Jomo Kenvatta University of Agriculture and
Technology. Ms Wanyonyi has over 10 years’
experience in procurement and supplies
functions. She is also a member of the
Institute of
Management

Management.

Purchasing and 5Supplies

and Kenya Institute of

FIBALN LUINIVERSITY |

CPA Benjamin Musina Oduarl
Deputy Finance Officer

Date of Birth Ist August 1972,
Joined in 2013 as Deputy Finance
Officer. Mr. Oduori holds BBM
(Accounting & Finance) (Moi),
MBM (Accounting) (Mei), and
CPA (K). He is a professional
accoumtant with over 18 years'
auditing and
at the

experience  in
assurance and finance
institutions of higher learning. He
is a member of ICPAK and ICIFA.

Fiduciary Management
! )
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B Fiduciary Management

Mz, Jecqueiine & Wanjala
Lega Officer
Joined Kibabii University in August 2015
as legal officer. She Holds 2 Bachelor of
Laws (LLB} University of Nairobi and
Diploma in Law from Kenya 5School of
Law (KS5L). GShe Is an Advocaie of the
High Court of Kenya, having been
admitted in 1993

member of the Law Society of Kenva with

Miss Waniala is a

27 wears of experience as an Advocate,
She has 11 years experienced in the

University Sector.

KIESAN UMIVERSITY |

Mz Johnsions Eshirera
Im-charge Health Unit

Date of Birth 29th October, 1970, joined
Kibabii University in 2012 as Deputy
Senior Clinical Officer and Head of
Department of Health services. Previously
worked for Masinde Muliro University
and Ministry of health respectively. Has
both  administrative  and  clinical
experience of more than 18 years of
service. Trained up to master’s level in
Community health at Great Lakes
University, University of Liverpool (UKj,
Moi University and Kenya Medical
Training College. Holds professional
Diplomas in Community Health, Sexual
and Reproductive Health in Developing
Couniries and Clinical Medicine and
Surgery.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMEN

On behali of Kibabii University Coursil, 1 am plsasad to present the Annual Report for the
2019/ 2020 financial year. The marshalled at the begirming of the year placed University
operations on a positive trajectory untll the outbreak of Coromavirus 2019 (COVID-19)
pandemic, which affected all facets of our operationa.
The University is committed to providing high quallty teaching, research and extension services
commensurate to the expectations of fcualty, staff, students and other stakeholders through
modem approaches that aflow the provision of efficient and reliable services, That
the University was awarded 1S0 9001:2015 Certification, is a testament to the fact that the
University meets the International Standards and further that her processes comply with
regulatory and statutory requirements. Tn addition, we continue 0 fully embrace performance
managemznt. This vear Performance Contracting was cascaded o all staff and initial assessment
indicates that they successfully delivered prescribed performance outputs on time.
Academic Programmes
The University continues 1o offer compatitive acadamic programmes, | am therefore happy ©
note that the University was competitively selected by the Inter-Usiversity Couneil of East
MﬁmﬂﬂﬂEﬁ}naRﬁ@ﬁnﬂﬂmﬂaﬂﬁmmmhmhmmﬁdmmmrmmm
Technology and Master of Bustness Administration which attracted sbx interatlonil students.
This speaks volumes about the resource capacities available at Kibabii Univessity.

019 Graduation Cevemony

The 4th Graduation Ceremony presided over by His Excellency Hen, Uhuru Kenyatta CGUH.,
President of the Republic of Kenva and Commanderin-Chief of the Defence Forces and
Chancellor of Kibabil University wus successful. A total of 1863 graduands distributed in terma

of 42% femals and 58% male were conferved with degrees and awearded diplomas and
certificates, We registered & modest but notable growth of 159, an increase from 1704 graduands

during 2018/ 2019 financial year.
Partneyship and Linkages
In 2 bid to enhance research and visibility, the University has sealed strategic collaborative

partmerships with over fifty agreements and memoranda of understanding signed with
reputable institutions and orgenizations. '

Administration snd Human Resodrce

To us excellence has ramained a trade mark. To sustain this, Council compieted the recruitment
process for senfor management staff including the Registrar {Adsainistration and Human
Resource) and Deputy Vice Charcellor (Administration, Finance and Development), to provide
contirued improvement in University leadership.

Capital Developmant Frojacts

1 am happy to note that the University now has the necessary infrastracture to provide a
conducive teaching and learning environment. One of the most recent accomplishments in this
direction is the completion of the Women Students Hostel desigaed to provide the much needed
accommodation for 412 students. Tt is tnstructive to note that these achievements are attributed
tom a large extent to the fnancial prudence exercised by the Council and Management.

In 2019/2020 financial yvear, the University revised the Strategic Plan 2016-2020 to align it to the
Goverrument’s Big 4 Agenda and the Medium-Term Plan {MTF) III of 20182022

KIBAS| LNHVERSITY | 24
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The University continues v compete favourable nationally and globally. 1t is in this regard
that | am pleased to report that the University was ranked position 15 in Kenva and 8038
globally on webometric ranking at the close of the 2019,/2020 financial year. This was an
improvement from position 19 in Kenya and 9060 Globally in January, 2020 ranking.

As [ finish, it is imperative that | mention the role of the Unjversity in community service.
Natable among the many activities pursued is the University donation of Hquid soap, hand
sanitizers and masks to Bungoma County Government and the Kibabii Community to
contribuie to the interventions towards the conmainment of COVID-19 pandemic in

Bungoma, within its Corporabe Social Responsibility mandate.

Finally, we have been able to record the above achisvements courtesy of the unwavering
support of the Chancellor, a far sighted Council committed Senate, and focused
Management, faithful Sfi, disciplined students and valuable stakeholders who have
worked round the clock to ensure that the University competes favourably with her pesrs.

Thank VOLL

.If.“'[}r. Ernest Mwangi Njoroge
CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL
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VICE CHANCELLOR’'S REPORT

Daar Staksholders,

1 would like to take ﬂﬂanppnrtmdtyh:highﬂghtﬂmmmdduﬂmgﬂu&m
Mrmﬂﬂfﬂﬁﬂ.?hﬁiti&mﬂh&ehﬂwﬂdufmisﬁhnabemmeafﬂmmmt

in recent memory. There was the advent of the Novel COVID-12 pandemic that
is still with us. The sudden closure severely impacted on our operations. This has meant
htghuexpmwkﬂxutﬂﬁwmmﬁﬁumumminlﬁﬂ. Despite these, we have
continued tn nurhure our strategic directions mwards becoming a regional giant in Higher
EduﬂﬂmTnthismigmtmdmhwbmmﬂmwmﬂmmﬂmﬂmﬂmeschmlnf
Nursing and we continue apace fo éngure that we will be ready to admit pioneer students
in the near future,

Duzing the year in review, four (4) academic programunes were accredited by the
Commission of University Education (CUE) while sevan {7) others have boon forwarded for
review and approval We also hope o grow our distance learning student population and
an application for approval @ be a TVET coursa provider has also lodged.

During the 2019/2020 financial year, our research capacity Increased with the number of
facully with PHD increasing to fifty-three (33), This Increase i human capital has realized
an increase in the number of active resesrchers and will go a long way in achisving our
research agenda.

There was a marked Increase in enrolment during the 2019/2020 Academic year. KIEU
welcomed a total of 1793 undergraduate students, an incyease of 71.57% from thie previous
year, The University also received 6 Internatianal students from the region, on TUCEA
Scholarships.
As a University, we continue to grow our alumni in numbers, quality and diversity. Just @
provide an overview, in the dth Graduation Coremony conducted during the year, the
University had one thousand eight hundred and sixty-three (1,863) students graduating,
ting a modest growth from one thousand saven hundred and four (1704) in its
Third (ird} Congregation in 2018, The lreakdown was &8s foliows: thirty-one (31)
Certificates accounting representing 1.66 %, two hundred mnd seventeen {317 Diplomas
accounting for 1168 %, one thousand five bundred and seveniy-fowt {1574) Bachelor's
degrees accounting for §4.49 %, thirty (30) Masters' degyees accoumting for 1.61 % and ten
(10} PhDs accounting for 0.5¢ %, This is a strong indiration that the overall number of
graduates keeps riging without compromising qualdity.
In the past Financial Year, the University through the suppoert of the Goverament of Kenya
comstructed & new hosiel for female studenis with a bed capacity of 412 The University
now has five Hostels, three for female and two for male students and this has enabled the
Univessity ko raise accommodation capacity from the previous 1,536 i 1,948 stuclents.

The Innovation Hub funded under the EU-AHEAD project was completed during the year
in veview, the ICT hub funded o the tane of Kshs.64.6 hiltion by the National Research
Fund is also well on course and set to house an incubation cene nnd a forensic laboratory.
These two projects coniribute b0 a great extent the University’s capacity for research and
tnovaticn as well as provided a good platform for the University to deliver on it mandate
given the current circumstances, with the pandemic; this is the direction to go as the current
divection is towards non-contact learrdng.
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VICE CHANCELLOR’S REPORT

We also had a successful mstallation of the surveillance eguipment 40 the tune of Kshs 7.9 Million.
This will Further ensure that security is enhanced within the university premmises.

It is hoped that these additions will provide the framework needed to davelop the human capital as
the Kibabii University 2016 - 2020 Strategic Plan places technology at the apex of the factors crucial
for fearning and teaching in the 21st Centary.

Druring the pericd, the Urdversity recorded growth in the University’s net worth from Xchs 2374
Billion to Kshs.2 & Billiov; this represents a 5.5% growth from the previous year, The University also
recorded a growth in funding for research. However, there was a marked decling in owr sarplus

numbers from Kshs.10.338 million reported last year to Kshs.0.887 million. This can be partly
attributed o the effects of the worldwide pandemic and the resultant closures to afl leaming

ingtnrtioms,

Last bat not least, my sincare gratitude goes to Kibabii University Council, the entire Management
Board, our members of s@ff, the stadent Fraternity, partners and donors, for their continued
comraliment and collabosation [ am confident that the University shall prosper and becoms a

beacon of suocess in the entire region. We are aiso happy to announce that cur Chairman of Council
received a tevm extension, for another 3 years. We commit our full support to him in his stewardship

towards this great University.

L
5

T ‘_'.&1"‘-.—.'_: i

Frof. Janac Ipara Odec,
Vice Chancellor
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REVIEW OF KIBABII UNIVERSITY'S PERFOMANCE

FOR FY 2019/2020

Kibabii University has six strategic directions and objectives within its 2016-2020 Strategic Flan.
The strategic directions are as follows:

DHrection 1:
Direction 2:
Dhivection 3:
Direction 4
Direction 5:
Direction &:

Improved Implementation of Health Services.

Promote and Maintain Excellence in Teaching and Learning

Support and Sustain Advancement in Research, Consultancy and Extension

Enhance Administrative, Financial and Human Resource Management Systems
Invest in Marketing, Public Relations and Linkages
Expand, Maintain and Improve Physical Infrastructure and Structures.

The University develops its annual work plans based on the 6 directions. Assessment of the

University’s performance against

its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The

University achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2019/2020 period under its (6]
strategic directions, as indicated below:

Direction 1: To offer quality and market Accredited new
Promote and driven programmes in PTOSTAMINGS
Mainkain conformity with CUE and
Excellence in TVET Standards
Teaching and [
Learning To achieve a substantial Graduaton rate 2377 1863
increase in student completion
To mtegrate ICT in academic | Programmes with ICT | 56 3
Programmes Frogrammes
"To expand library Resources No. of Library 2 2
resources initiated
To strengthen student welfare | No of student welfare |3 3
saryics services initated
Drirection IL: To Strengthen Research in the | Staff and graduate 40 staff 62
Advancement in University students equipped
Research, with Enowledge on 30 35
Innowvatioz, kof Students
Partnerships and research projects
Linkages
Te enhance Research Signed collaboration |4 4
Collaboration Malls
[To enhance safety of research | [PR registration 2 & Applicatons
and innowvations 1 Patent
2 Copy Rights
2 Trademarks
Registered
Te improve Community Community Cutreach |3 4
Chatreach Services activities conducted
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REVIEW OF KIBABII UNIVERSITY'S PERFOMANC

FOR FY 2019/2020

To enhance research Regearch proposals i
N submitted for funding
Ta enhance dissemination of Publish books, boak 1 1 ool
research findings chapters and peer Unlversity | 9book Chapters
reviewed arfticles in level baok &7 journals
reputahle journals Chapter
e P O S I i
CHrection T To sirengthen the University’s Irnplementation of QS 150 900120715 Ra-
Enhance adrministrative quality management Certification
Administrative, SYEIEmS
Financial and Huaman Launch of ISMS
Resnurce hManagement Zrnm
o To Improve efficiency of service | Reduced lead Gme in Incegration  (95%
provision serving students, real time | with banks
updating of student
- depnsits |
Ti promate pood corporate Undversity Counciland  jone rRining | Universine Couneil
FonreTnance hamagement equipped  on and U{B imained
with governance skills governance |onoxporate
and EOVEITANCE
I . P wromEneo _
To Increase the use of ICT in the Tse of ICT in
University operations y tezching, learning
Jand meeting s
2 implemented
Te Enhance Safety and Security of | Reduced insecurity CCTV survedllance
Students, Staff and stakeholders incicents installed
Eibabil potice post
| " _ established
To attract, develop and retain Reduced staff amaover Recruitment |53 staff Members
competent staff rates
Fromotion |12 Staff Members
- A Training 25 Stalf Members
To enhance financial resource Growth in A LA 37million | 456 million
mohilization . . ]
To enhance prudent fnancial Raduced pending kills 1% The University did
managermeni Homouring statutery not have any
obligations outstanding
statutory obligation
as at the close of the
i ik — FY e
Direction I [To promote EIBLT s image through | PR and Marketing office Public Relations
Imrest in Marketing, enhancement of ks visbdlity established dehlarketing Office
Fublic Relations and weas established
Linkages 3 erchibitiors '
Participation im Shows and Graduation
Exhibitions cEremaey was aired
live on TV, The
Mo. of adveris on prinl University ran a
media & Electromic media twro week prime
{ coverage Hme advertisement
on TV and 5 adwerts
ware dong an print
mediza
To strengthen markscang of the Increasad awareness of the B3 Secondary
LUniversity snd its programmas LUmniversisy and her Schools hosted [/
PrOETaATLMES wigited during the
reparting period
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Direction V:

FOR FY 2019/2020

To expand and upgrade

Completion of

REVIEW OF KIBABII UNIVERSITY'S PERFOMANCE

Oine student

Expand, Maintain | physical infrastructure the Women hostel that will
and Improve through completion of Student Hostel house 412
Physical planned constructions for students was
Infrastructure and | intended use completed
Structures. during the
year
To enhance energy Reduced costof | 10% 30%
management and electricity and
! conservation water
Direction VI: To Upgrade Kibabii Approval of Level 4 Health policy
Improved University Health Cenfre University hospital was approved
Implementation | from level 3A to level 4 Health cenire as
of Health hospital level 4 hospital
Services.
[ To enhance Service Improved Procurement | A Modern
Delivery referral services | of an ambulance
and enhanced ambulance | and an
sterilization and electronic auto
gervices electronic clave were
auto clave procured
during the
year
To promote health within | A community Community | 2 Community
the community with health outreaches/ | outreaches
seeking medical and 1 free
behaviour camp medical camp
To enhance healthy Prevention of Quarterly Fumigation on
learning and working communicable fumigation | quarterly basis
environment diseases of University | Proper waste
premises management
& clean
environment
maintained
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The University Council, presided by the Chairman is a body established to govemn the
University. The Council is appointed in accordance with the Universities Act, 2012 {No. 42 of
2012) by the Cabinet Secretary in charge of Ministry of Education. The Council provides
strategic direction, exercises control and remains accountable through effective leadership,
enterprise, integrity and good judgment. It is diverse in its composition, independent but
flexible, pragmatic, objective and focused on balanced and sustainable performance of the
University. The Council retains responsibility for establishing and maintaining the
institnton’s overall control of financial, operational and compliance issues as well as
implementing strategies for the long term success of the Institution.

The membership of the Council includes:

1. 6 independent Members appointed by the Cabinet Secretary in charge of Education

2 One (1) member representing the Principal Secretary in charge of the State Department
for University Education and Reseasch, Ministry of Education

3.  One (1) Member representing the National Treasury

4. The Vice Chancellor as an ex-officio Member.

Appointment and Removal of Council Members

i. Every appointment is by name and by notice in the Kenya Gazette but ceases if the
Council member: Serves the appointing authority with a written notice of
resignation; or is absent, without the permission of the Chairperson, from the three
consecutive meeiings; or Is convicted of an offence and sentenced to imprisonment
for a term exceeding six months or to a fine exceeding twenty thousand shillings; or
Is incapacitated by prolonged physical or menial iliness from performing his duties
as a member of the Coumncil; or Conducts himself in a manner deemed by the
appointing authority to be inconsistent with membership of the Council,

ii.Any removal of a Council member under {i) above, shall be through formal
revocation.

Council Chartey

The Council has a Charter thai defines the Council’s roles and responsibilities as well as
functions and structures in a way that supports the members in carrying out their strategic
oversight function. It provides the Council members with an opportunity to think creatively
and critically about how their sirategic and operational plans align with the organization’s
strategic direction and expectatons, with respect to governance. It helps the Council in
directing the organization o maximize the long term value of services provided for all
stakeholders,

The Charter is reviewed semi-anmually and is availabie to ali members of the Council for
application and is posted on the Kibabii University's website for the information of
stakeholders.

The members of Council have committed themselves to the service of Kibabii University and
to uphold the tenets of good corporate governance by being innovative, lransparent,
accountable, persons of integrity, socially responsive, as well as promote excellence and
exercise fairness in all their activities
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Ethics and Conduct

The Council adheres to the Code of Conduct and Ethics for State Corporations (5Cs) which
focuses on ethical conduct and integrity at the workplace.

It defines the University Councils’ commitment to the highest standards of behaviour so as to
contribute to the achievement of the national development goals. The Code sets out expectations
for individual behaviour necessary to meet these standards and includes requirements and
guidance to help carry out their roles with integrity and in compliance with the law. By
exemplifying the ethical behaviours and corporate values described in the Code, the University
Council is expected to uphold Articlel0 of the Constitution of Kenya on National Values and

Principles of Governance and Chapter 6 on Leadership and Integrity.

Conflict of Intevest Policy & Disclosures

A conflict of interest may arise where a Council member or close family member such as a
spouse, child, parent or sibling has private interests that could improperly influence the
performance of the Council member’s official duties and responsibilities. Conflict may also arise
where a Council member uses their office for personal gain.

Council members are required to avoid conflict of interest and deal at arms-length in any matter
that relates to the University. However, a Council member who identifies an area of conflict
shall be required to disclose any actual or potential conflict of interest to the Councl. In so
reporting, the Council member is required to provide all relevant information, incuding
information which relates to their immediate family members by blood or marriage which is
related to the area of conflict. When declared, the Council member shall abstain from decisions
where the conflict exists.

The Council Secretariat keeps a record of conflicts of interest declared, for accountability
purposes, and as a rule of good practice on appointment and on regular intervals or at any fime
when circumstances change, all members shall in good faith disclose to the Council for
recording, any other business or interest likely to create a potential conflict of interest.

Couneil Eemuneration

Council members are remunerated for their services in accordance with State Corporations Act
provisions and,/ or guidance from the State Corporations Advisory Committee. In line with best
practice, the remuneration includes Honoraria for the Chair of Council and attendance
allowances for all members.

Council Succession

The Kibabit University Council has put in place a succession plan for both the Council and
Management, which is reviewed regularly.

Council Performance

The Council conducts an annual evaluation to appraise its performance. The Council evaluation
provides an opportunity for Council members to identify strengths, collective skill gaps and
individual areas of improvement. The Council also reviews the performance of each Committee
against the agreed Terms of Reference. It also evaluates the performance of the Vice Chancellor.

Governance Audit

The Council is required to ensure that a governance audit of the organization is undertaken on
an anmual basis, The purpose of the governance audit is to ensure that the organization
conforms to the highest standards of good governance.

Fay
4]
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The governance audit covers the following parameters among others: Leadership and strategic
management; Transparency and Disclosure; Compliance with Laws and Regulations;
Communication with stakeholders; Council independence and governance; Council systems and
procedures; Consistent shareholder and stakeholders’ value enhancement; and Corporate Social
Responsibility and investment.

Council Induction and Continuous Professional Development

In FY2019/ 2020, new Council members were inducied in order to familiarize themselves with their
responsibilities as Members of Council, general principles of corporate governance and Council
practices. The induction programme provided the Council members with an orientation of the
organization, strategic plans, financial status and policies, risk management, compliance
programmes and the Code of Conduct and Ethics. Members of the University Council were also
inducted on Mwongozo and trained on Corporate Leadership and Governance and Improving
Board Performance. These sessions were specifically selected in order to update the Council
members on emerging issues pertaining governance, audit and financial reporting, and management
of State Corporations.

Our Council's Composition

Dhiversity

The University Council has (%) members, (8) male and (1) female, who combined give various inputs
borrowing from their areas of expertise in the fields of Clinical studies, Epidemiclogy, Geology,
Hydrology, Arbitration, Environmental Management, Law, Sirategic Management, Governance,

Laboratory Technology, Medical Microbiology, Public Finance, Taxation, Commumication anid
Human Resource Management

Council Responsibilities

The University Council underiakes the following responsibilities;

1. The Council iz the governing body of the University through which the University acts and
undertakes the following;

a) Administers the property and funds of the University in a manner and for the purposes
which promotes the interest of the University; but the Council does not charge or dispose
of immovable property of the University except in accordance with the procedures laid
down by the Governmen? of Kenya;

b) Receives, on behalf of the University, donations, endowments, gifts, grants or other meneys
and make distuirsements there from to the University or other bodies or persons;

c) Provides for the welfare of the staff and students of the Undversity;

d) May enter into association with other universities, or other institutions of learning, whether
within Kenya or otherwise, as the Council may deem necessary and appropriate; and

e} May, after consultation with the Academic Board, make regulations governing the conduct
and discipline of the students of the University.

2. All documents, other than those required by law to be under seal, made on behalf of the Council,
and all decisions of the Council may be signed under the hand of the Chairman, the Vice
Chancellor or any other members of the Council generally or specifically anthorized by the
Council in that behalf.

3. Ensures that a proper management structure is in place and that the structure functions io
maintain corporate integrity, reputation and responsibility.
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4 Monitors and evaluates the implementation of strategies, policies, and management
criteria and plans of the University.

5. Constantly reviews the viability and financial sustainability of the University, and does
S0 OMCe E"l.lrEf}r Y'E'ﬂ.l'.

6. Ensures that the University complies with all the relevant laws, regulations, governance
practices, accounting and auditing standards.

University's Council Programme/Almanac

Kibabii University Council has a minimum of four (4} meetings as provided by the State
Corporations Act and capped at a maximum of six (§) for each financial year. The
University has four (4) committees that assist in the smooth running of its affairs. The
committees also have a minimum of four {4} meelings per year.
regular updates from each of the commitiees.

The Council receives




E COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

To effectively discharge its mandate, the Council establishes Committees with specific terms of
reference.

The Counci! Comgnittees facilitate decision-making to assist the Council in the execution of its duties,
powers and authority, however delegation of authority to the Cormmitiees does not in any way
mitigate or dissipate the discharge by the Council of its duties and responsibilities, Council
Committees have been established with formal written terms of reference and observe the same rules
of conduct and procedures as the Council.

In the financial year 2019,/2020 the Councii approved the following committees;

1. Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee;

2. Governance and Human Resource Committes;

3. Sirategy, Finance and Development Committee; and
4. Awards and Sealing Committes.

Other thar: the stated Committees, an Ad-hoc Commitiees may be established as need arises.

The Council membership and meeting attendance during the financial year 2019,/2020 is as indicated
below;

MNARE 157 QUARTER il 350 QUARTER a7 QUARTER
QUART
ER
DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE | DATE | DATE
22nd 20tk Z2ad 300 Jan. | 14% Fab, | ™ Ik 1o
July, Sept. Now, 2020 2020 Plarch | Miay, Junie,
e 2019 prbh L 2020 0 2020
Dr. Exnest Miwansi
Njoroge e v v ¥ v v v v
Mir. Hussain Abdi Farzh
W v v ' v ¥ v
| bir. Francis Asuneh
v v v v v v’ v v
b, Wincent Myabiosi
W v v v v W v v
Eng. Mwaks Mungatana
e P e R e
My, Michael Dboaya
v v v v v v W v
D, Joyee Npgore
- v v v v v v v v
hir. Tom Wam bus
v il v v v v v W v
Frof. Isanc I. Odeo
: v v v v v v v

KIBARN LMIVERSITY | 25
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GCOVERNANCE AND HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

This Committee is charged with the responsibility of reviewing and providing advisory opinion on
University Statutes; making recommendations to Council on staff welfare related issues; recommend
to Council improvement in the job grading classification as the Committee may consider appropriate
and provide, oversight in matters of human resource, including salaries, disciplinary matters and
appointments and promotions of Professors, Associate Professors and equivalent Administrative

and Library Grades.

Membership and mesting attendance during the FY2019/2020 is as below listed:

NAME 15T QUARTER 290 QUARTER 380 i QUARTER
QUARTE
———— —r— R A —
DATE DATE DATE DA DAT DATE | DAT
23 July, | P Aug | 19%Oct | 21*Nov, | 17" Jan, | 17 April, | 2¢% April
o 2019 2019 2019 209 2020 2020 2020
Mr. Framcis Asunak v i 3 ¥ v v 4
bir. Tom h. = i r o o o W
| Wambua L
E:E— PN ¥ ' W v v v ¥
it vt v v v v ¥ v v
| ‘Oboryo
i i) .4 v s e v v v
Prof. lsaac I Odeo s o 7 o v v v

AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

This committee’s mandate is to review and provide advisory opinions on Internal and External
Auditors’ reports and make recommendations for the improvement of the internal controls. The
committee also monitors and evaluates management's response to and implementation of
internal control recommendations. This include, internal Audit reporis, PIC recommendations,
external audit reports, Risk management, PFM systems and special assignments. This
committee also provides advice on Quality and Performance Monitoring.

Membership and meeting attendance during the FY2019/2020 is as below listed:

NAME 1TQUARTER | 20 30 4™ QUARTER
QUARTER QUARTER
DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE
137 Sep. 2019 14" Dec. 2019 | 21% March, 12 June, 2020 | 13" June,
2020 2020

Mr. Vingent M.

Nyablosi v v v v v

Mr, Hussein Abdi

Farah ¥ ¥ v ¥ ¥

Mr. Michaei |.

G v v v + v

Drr. joyce W, Mgure v - o o g
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AWARDS AND SEALING COMMITTEE

The mandate of the commities is fo; Receive and consider graduation list for award of Certificates,
Diplomas and conferment of Degrees and make recommendations to the Council; Receive and
Consider the graduwation booklet and make recommendations to the Council; Ensure that the
processing of Certificates and Transcripts is done diligently and with integrity ; Receive and consider
proposals t0 Council and nominations for the award of Degrees; Recommend to Council award of
Honorary Degrees.; Authorize on behalf of the Council the application of the University seal to

documents.

Membership and meeting attendance for the FY2019/2020 is as listed below:;

| NAME e 20 QUARTER %o e
' UARTER QUARTER | QUARTER
DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE
BlfA igth st 31 fanuary, NfA
Movember, MNovember, 2030
) 2019 2019
| Mr. Husssin Abdi Farah 7 v 7 7
| Mr. Francis Asunah v 7 e ‘.
| e, Vizvcene M. Mwabiosi - aF o v"‘ .
Mir. Michael |. Obon: . |
i W o W ) |
Dir. Joyee W Mgun: » it o

STRATEGY, FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The mandate of the committee is to oversee infrastructure development and mainienance, review in
year and annual financial reports and budgets and make recommendations to Council and act on
behalf of council in reviewing the Undversity strategic plan

Membership and meeting attendance for the FY2019/ 2020 is as below:

NAME 15T QUARTER 2 QUTARTER | 3°0 4T
QUARTER | QUARTER
DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE
- 13 14 12% October, | 17 fanmary, | 10 April,
July, 2019 September, | 2018 2020 2020
| 2015
| Eng. Mwaks Mungatana S 7 o R o+
Mr. Francis Asunah v v v v v’ |
filr. Tom M. Wambes W o o - \-‘"’ 1”,-"
M. Michael J. Obenyo 7 v v s v
| Dr. Jeyce Ngure v o ” - i
Prof. Isasc I, Odseo v o " o
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COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

COUNCIL'S KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

Council’s key achievements in the 2019,/2020 financial year include:
Approval of Quarterly Reports and Financial Statements
Approval of Budget Estimates for Financial Year 2019/2020
Performance Contract for the Financial Year

Attainment of IS0 9001:2015 Re-Certification

Appraval of Revised Strategic Plan 2016-2020

Approval of Revised Kibabii University Statutes, 2020

Approved Annual Procurement Flan 201972020

b b S B B B B &

Successful recruitment of the Deputy Vice Chancellor (Administration, Finance and
Development)

Recruited a total of 33 staff, 18 were administrative while 15 were academic staff.
Successful 4th Graduation Ceremony

Completion of Women Students Hostel Phase i3

Establishment of Office of Career Services

Improvement of University Webometric ranking in Kenya

- - -

Approval of the following Policies and procedure manuals;
a. Open and Distance Electronic Learning Policy
b. Kibabii University Alumni Association Constifution
c. Innovation Management Policy
d. Resource Mobilization Strategy

e. Whistle Blower Policy

# Procured Medical Insurance and Group Personal Accident Insurance for members of staff and
Council.

# Approved Succession Plan for Top University Management Staff

% Proposed Council Almanac for 2020/2021 Financial Year
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The 2019,/2020 financial year has seen a subdued performance in the achievement of revenmue targets.
With the raging COVID-1% pandemic, many institutions including ours have had to reassess risks,
and cope with the deep uncertainty that has culminated into the current global economic crisis.
Despite this, the University has made progress in changing its mode of operaiions, enabling it
deliver on its mandate of providing quality teaching, research and extensior. services, by way of
employing technology in carrying out its operations especially in teaching, seminars, training and
mestngs.

The 2019/2020 financial year marked the final year of implementation of the University’s first five
year strategic plan. It is ime to look back and review our successes and missteps. The following are
some of the highlights of the achievemenis under each of the six (6) sirategic directions in the
Uraversity’s 2016-2020 sirategic plan;

STRATEGIC .PROMOTE AND MAINTAIN EXCELLENCE IN

| DIRECTION ONE RiGsahlE IS

«ADVAMCEMENT IN RESEARCH, INNOVATION
RARTHMERSHIFS AND LINKAGES

sERNHAMCE ADMIMISTRATIVE, FINAMCIAL AND
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT EYSTEMS

STRATEGIC -INVEST IN MARKETING AND PUBLIC
DIRECTION FOUR Eialleus

<EXPAMD, MAINTAIN AND IMPROVE PHYSICAL
FACILITIES ANMD INFRASTRUCTURE

STRATEGIC

DIRECTION FIVE

STRATEGIC | PEOVIDE QUALITY HEALTH CARE SERVICES
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION ONE:

Dromote and Maintain Excellence in

eaching and Learning
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NEW ACADEMIC PROGRAMMES

Kibabii University, in its growth trajectory,
initiated the development of new Programmes in

response to market demands.
During the reporting year;
s 2 Bachelors,

6 Masters and 2 FhD

programmes were developed and approved

by senate

* Four (4) were accredited by the Commission
for University Education (CUE);
@ BSc. in Entrepreneurship and Cooperatives

Management

8 Master of Education in Kiswahili

o Masters

of Business Administrabion &

Management (MBA) with IT

= Master of Science in Computer Science
8 7 programmaes (listed) were forwarded to
the Commission for University Education

(CUE) for accreditation.

S/ MAME OF PROGRAMME

1. Bacheior of
sclence in
Mursing

F & taster of Zclencs In
Logistics and Supply
Chain Managemant

5, pdaster of Science in
Digital Security and
Fargnsics
Magtar of Arts in Kiswahili

Mastars of Science in

Compuiar Science
6. Phiy i

Kiswahil
7. PhD in Business

Administration

DATE
SLUBMITTED
TS CUE

T June
2020

17 Juna
2020

T3 June 2020

17t June 2020

8% February
2012

|17 June

2020
7N June
2020

The University is in the process of launching
the accredited programmes and continues to
develop more Programmes and short courses.

Additionally,

Facultes/Schools  inibated

processing of a total of twenty-three (23)
programmes for Senate approval.

KIEAE LIMIVERSITY |
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2/H  FACULTY/SCHOOL WO, OF MEW
PROGRARBIE(S)
L Faculoy of a8
Education end
Social Sciences
2. Faculty of Science 7
y Echool of Business &
and Economics
i School of &
Computing and
Informatics
EMBRACING TVET EDUCATION AS A
PILLAR TO DEVELOFMENT

Realizing the central role of Technical and
Vocatonal Education and Training in
Kenya's Development Agenda, Kibabii
University embarked on a journey towards
accreditation by Technical and Vocational
Education and Traiming Authority (TVETA)
in order to expand opporhmities to the
many high schocl graduates who chose to
pursue TVET. Towards this end, The
Directorate of Technical and Vocational
Education and Training (TVEI} in
conjunction with the Faculties and Schools
acquired 35 TVET programs from
Curriculum Development Assessment and
Certification Council ({CDACC) ready for
launching upon completion of the
accreditation process.

The University is in the final stages of
meeting all requirements for accreditation,
having trained trainess, subjected itself to
external mspection by the Public Health

and completed uisite
forme. Once accredited KIBU will launch
the programs that are ready per
School/Faculty, broken-down as follows:
School of Business and Economics (S0OBE) -
17 programmes, School of Computing and
Informatics (SCAI) - 13 programmes,
Faculty of Education and Social Sciences
(FESS) - 4 programmes and Faculty of
Science (FS) - 1 programme.
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TURNING TO TECHNOLOGY FOR
TEACHING AND LEARNING THROUGH
ODEL

While it has been clear for a long time now that

technology is increasingly gaining prominence

in education as is the case in other sectors, the
outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic has awoken
even those who were slow in taking that line of

i . Kibabii University already had a

Directorate of Open, Distance and e-Learning

and a robust Directorate of ICT working on

providing support in ensuring that KIBU
programmes take maximum advantage of
emerging technologies in teaching and learning.

The Directorate of ICT continued to provide

services by ensuring the required infrastructure

is available and functional during the year
under review in the following broad areas: ERF,

Network, User Support, Website, Maintenance

and Systems  administration. Notable

achievements include the following:

i. Successful launch of the CCTV system,
which has enhanced the security of
equipment and people, and led to
improved invigilation of examinations
with very few irregularities reported.

ii. One hundred and two (102) members of
staff created their research profiles on
Google Scholar and fifty-seven (57) on
ORCID,

iii,. Successful negotiation for sixteen (16)
website backlinks.

iv. Improved webometric locally
from position 19 to 15 and globally from
position 906{ to position 8038.

v. Launched ISO 27001:2013 Information

STRATEGIC DIRECTION ONE:

Security Management Systems.

The University continued to build capacity of
staff through training in order to emable them
continue teaching through the online platforms.
Deans of Schools and Faculies and
Chairperscns of academic departments were
trained on Basic Skills of Managing Online
Teaching and Learning. The training was aimed
at equipping them with skills on how they can
enable students to interact with content in a
self-directed manner through Moodle, which is
a learning management system of choice at
Kibabii University. The same was later offered
to all members of academic staff in the
University.

Secondly, staff were trained on how to conduct
virtual meetings using various platforms. As a
result, University Management (UMB), Senate,
Deans’ Committee and other organs of the
University have continued discharging their
functions.

STUDENT ENROLMENT

Kibabii University has witmessed a steady
growth in new student numbers over the years.
The 2019-2020 Academic Year saw an increase
in first year student numbers from 973 in
2018/ 2019 to 1201 in 2019/2020 as shown in the
following tabulation.

Undergraduate Stadents’ Statistics
Undergraduate student numbers; a comparison
of 20182019 and 2019,/ 2020 Academic Years

20EF2019
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2019/2020 ACADEMIC YEAR STUDENT

ENROLMENT BY LEVELS

LEVEL 2019/ 2020 x
EMROLAMENT

FHD, MASTERS AND 552 B7EX

POST-GRADUATE

DIPLOMA

UMDERGRADUATES B150 £1.40%

DIPLOMA STUDENTS 602 9.25%

CERTIFICATE i 0.55%

STUDENTS

GRAMD TOTAL 7558 150

Shudents' Envelment 2019/2020
Academic Year

g.asy 0.58% B.76E%

aPHD, MASTERS AND
POET-CRADUATES
IUHDERGRADUATES

CAPLOSAL STUDEMTS

CERTIFICATE STUDEMTS

INTERNATIONALIZATION OF HIGHER
EDUCATION

Internationalization has emerged as an
important aspect of higher education as it
gives students an opporiunity to expand their
worldview by interacting across borders. As a
result, education plays a big role in developing
a multicultaral global citizen, As a first step
towards this in 2019-2020, KIBU received
six (b} international students in the School of
Graduate Studies. Four (4) students were
admitted for Master of  Business
Administration (MBA) and two (2) admitied
for Master of Science in Information
Technology (MSc. IT). This resulted from a
competitive process in which the Schools of
Computing and Informatics (SCAI} and the
School of Business and Economics (SOBE)
submitted applications to a call to universities
to host students from Member States of the
East African Community in identified
pProgrammes.

KIBABH LBIVERSITY |
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The program is a collaboration between the
Inter University Council for East Africa
(TUCEA} and the German Development Bank
{KFW). The University expects to receive
students in the second batch under the
program in the two (2Z) programmes as it
awaits a response from the IUCEA on
additional applications that were submitted in
respect to other programmes including: M5c in
Pure Mathematics; MBA (HE); MS5c in
Computer Science; MBA with IT; MSc in
Physics; and MSc in Applied Mathematics.

GRADUATION

On 22nd November 2019, Kibabii University
held the Fourth (4th) Congregation for the
Conferment of Degrees and Award of
Diplomas and Certificates. The University had
one thousand eight hundred and sixty three
(1.B63) students graduating, representing a
modest h from one thousand seven
hundred and four (1704) in its Third (3rd)
Congregation in 2018, The breakdown was as
follows: thirty one (31) Certificates accounting
representing 166 %, two hundred and
seventeen (217) Diplomas accounting for 11.65
%, one thousand five hundred and seventy
four (1574) Bachelor's degrees accounting for
8449 %, thirty (30) Masters’ degrees
accounting for 161 % and ten (10) FhDs
accounting for 0.54 %.

Surnmary of the 2019
Graduates

15 B50BE
= SCAI
Fs
HFESS




TREMD OF KIBU GRADUATES FROM
THE YEAR 2016 TO 2019

STUDENT WELFARE SERVICES

In executing iis mission, the University
strengthened the students’ welfare support
system by appointing more wardens, peer
counseliors, chaplaincy and operationalizing
the office of career services, among other
activities.

MENTORSHIP ACTIVITIES

Kibabii University places a lot of premium on
mentorship of its students and prospective
students as a way of impacting the nearby
community and society at large.

School Mentorship Activities

Thirty-eight (38) schools visited the University
in the year under review for the programme.
As a result fifty (50) students joined the
University in the Academic Year 201%/2020.
The visiting schools were from Bungoma,
Busia, Trans Nzoia, Nandi, Nakuru, Vihiga,
Kakamega and Kisumu Counties. This helps to
market and position the University as a
national institution that endeavours to offer

knowledge and skills for national
development.

Mentorship outreaches

The University conducted mentorship

outreach visits to schools comprising staff and
students. Eighty (80) schools were visited in
the year under review, among them was St
Brigids Kiminini girls which secured 16th
position country wide in K.C5.E. with over 90
students scoring grade A and A-(Mirus).

KIBARDT UMIVERSITY |

Further proof of the impact that this
pmgramishavingisgivenin&mlemrﬂ[
appreciation received from Kapsabet High
schoel for receiving academic mentorship since
2015.

“...a8 a matter of fact, our i with Kibabii
University has enabled our school set on an uprrard
trajectory and thus realizing sterling results from
2015 to date. We were Hen o newly established
national school located i the rural county of Nandi
buct at the moment, we are the most preferred boy
school nationally. Going by #he 2019 school
seiection medin swvey, 30,000 boys preferred

joining our scheol yet our capacity ts lardiy 400

students. Truly speahing, we are greatly indelbted
to you our good and mstitute mentering insiituEon
through Dr. Wifiula Robert. [n this year 2020; our
candidates are really psyched up after sharing with
then on the subject: power of positime mind
driving sucoess zarly i e year. Ve do
believe they twill ssrmount all the sethacks caused
by the Covid-19 pandemic.”
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Careers and Culhieal Week

This year's Careers and cultural week's event
with the theme “Embracing Culiural Diversity
and Innovations for Global Prosperity” took
place from 12th to 15th February, 2020.

Students from diverse backgrounds displayed
opulence anc rich culiural dances clustered
into Kenyan Counties with similar practices.
The University welcomed the first group of
international students who were freated to the
‘hakuna matata’ Kenyan culiure.

Ctther activities that took place during the fete
included: games and sports, cultural songs and
dances, traditional foods and talent search.
Students were also entertained with various
outdoor competitions.

There were eniries in various categories e.g.
Rap, dancing, spoken word, poetry, singing
and eating competition.
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There was a beauty pageant Competition
which aimed at selecting Mr. and Miss Kibabii,
Mir. Flex and Miss Jombao,

The event was partly sponsored by Soft drinks
manufacturer Coca Cola, Super Loaf, Family
Bank, Kwenji Water and Safaricom Limited

GAMES AND SPORTS

Owur students participated in various sporting
activities during the year in review: a highlight
of the major successes include;

¢ KUSA Western Games 2009/2020:
Soccer mer crowned KUSA Western Soccer
= League champions of 201 5/2020,

HomaBay open Taskwondo Championship:
First Position for both Men and
Women Categories.

The University also successfully hosted the
Open Friendly Tourmament for build-up
purposes with the Kenya Taekwondo Talent
Academy on 16th March 2020.

Kibabii University students shine in the
international arena

The University during the year in review
celebrated the victory of two of her students; 1)
Faith Ogallo a third year Social Work student,
who made the University and Kenya proud at
the Olympic qualifiers in Rabat, Morocce. The
12th al! African Games silver medalist and
Dubai G2 bronze medslist earmned Kenya
Taskwondo & slot &t the Olympics in Tokyo
Japan and will represent Kenya in the
middle / heavyweight category at the games
and 2} Benson Moshon who emerged winner
at the KUSA Cross Country race held at
Egerton University. Mr. Moshon, who is also
the all African University Games Silver
medalist, was to proceed o Morocco in March,
2020 for the 10th World University cross
country games. The games were postponed
due to COVID-19.

The two were named EIBU's sporis
ambassadors and will be branded as the

Univ&rsit‘f’s sports haroes,
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STUDENTS' LEADERS ELECTIONS

The Students successiully slected their leaders on
13th March, 2020. The elechons for the Electoral
College Nominees and Student Council were
held on the same day. The swearing in of the
newly elected leaders and handing over was
done on 19th March, 2020. sAppointment of a committee to |
establish University online
Counselling services to offer
psycho-social support amidst the
COVID-19 pandemic challenges
and beyond.

Wirtua! mestings successfully held
with peer counsellors with the aim

of assessing the psychosocial well-
keaing of students while at home.
oSuccessful training of student Peer
Counssilors who sarve as the link
between the students' body and

. counseiling section and mobilize
students to attend various
behaviour change forums in the
University

«Successful hosting of gender talks

in collaboration with srudent
Accommodation

v




STRATEGIC DIRECTION

TWO:

ADVANCEMENT IN RESEARCH,
INNOVATION PARTNERSHIPS AND"
LINKAGES-
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO:

Kibabii University's, in its Strategic Flan 2016 - 2020, seeks to advance in Research and Innovation
through strategic Partmerships for the benefit of society. This strategic direction 1s anchored in the
University's vision and demonstrates the importance placed on research and innovation activities
in the University. Indeed, one of the major functions of the University is to "participate in the
vesearch, transmission and preservation and enhancement of knowledge and to stimulate the
intellect participation of students in the economic, social, cultural, scientific and technological

development of Kenya”,
Status of Research and Innovation at the for the year 201%/2020

Research

KIBU endeavours to strengthen research in the University as one of its Strategic Objectives. The
University emphasizes multi-disciplinary and multi-institutional collaborative research by
engaging diverse professionals/ researchers from other institutions locally and mternationally in a
number of research projects. In 2019/2020, a total of six research projects worth Ksh. 190 Million
were an-going. This included Ksh. 9 Million worth of student scholarships.

On-going Donor Funded Research Projects
Through strategic partnerships, the following research projects were initiated during the
2019 /2020 financial yvear:

Fl Project Title Donor Agency
Prof. Franklin Kibabii University Mﬂﬂnnﬂﬂn.ﬂﬁmmmﬁjh and NRF-Kenya
Wabwaoba Technology Hub (KICTH) Infrastructure Project
Dr. Patrick O. DIES Management of Internationalization (Mo} DAAD
Owaoche Project
Mr. Kennedy 5. Transforming Energy Access - Learning Parmership  DfiDY/ Carbon
Munycle {TEA-LF) Project Trust
Frof. Benedict M. African Higher Education Leadership in Advancing EU
Mutua Inclusive Inmovation for Development (AHEAD)

Project
Prof. Julius K. Maiyo  DIES Natcnal Multiplication Treinings Project DaAAD

Dr. Paul O, Ong'anyi  DIES/CREST Training Course for Supervisors of DAAD
Doctaral Candidates at African Universities

Dr. Joshua O. Abuya  DIES/CREST Training Course for Supervisors of DAAD
Doctoral Candidates at African Universities

Mr. Stephen (. Spatail Distribution, Capacity and Cooperation NRF - Kenya
Nyaare among Disaster Risk Management Actors in Kenya
Project
Dr. Alice Nambiro Technology Enabled Learning Commonwealth
Wechuli of Learning
43
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University Research Fund

Kibabii University invests in its staff by establishing University Research Fund (URF) Programme.
The fund competitively offers seed research grants to budding resezrchers for purpeses of capacity
building as they prepare to manage major research projects. The foliowing URF funded research
projects were funded during the FY2012/2020.

University funded Research Projects

PI Projeci Title -~
Dr. Tom G. Ekisa Innovative Agribusiness Approach to Cassava (Manthot esculenta) and
Millet (Eleusine spp } Valug Chain Enhancement Profect

Dy, Munir #. Universal Health Care Needs Assessment for the Aging Population in
hMuganda Kanduoyi Sub-County, Kenya Project

Dr. Ben W. Socic-Economic and Cultural Correlates of Socdal Vices among Students
Nyongesa of Kibabil University and their Impact in the Neighbourhood Project

Research Praoposals Developed and Submitted for Donor Funding

In 2019/2020, a total of twenty three (23) multi-disciplinary research proposals were developed
and submitted for local and international donor funding, representing a 48% increase from those
developed in the previous year.

Research Proposals Developed and Submitted for International Donor Funding

§MNo. Title of Research Proposal Donor Ampunt
i Agency
L Improving the Post-Graduats Supervision CODESRIA U5 350330

Capacity and Mentorship of Faculty for Cuality
Crutpuats and Timely Completion Rates in the
Humanities and Social Sciences

2, Enhancing rapid COVID-19 testing as an efficient ELRHA, UK £1,348,726
tool for circumventing the exponential
ransmrission and spread in LREB, Kenya

3, Accounting Implication of COVID-19on IFRS %  JAAER/KFM 15 25,000
Implementaton on Keayve Financial Services G
Sector
4 Enhancing Best Practices on Professionalization of CODESRIA  § 325,000
Distance and Online Doctoral Supervision in HEls
in Afri
B, Technology Enabled Learning (TEL) COL, Canada CALD 11568
&. Academic Mobility for Sustainable Information  Africa Union € 1,385,128
and Communication Technology Human Capital {AU) and
Development (AMSTHD) European
Umnion: (ELT}
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7 URBAN CLIMATE CHANGE LABS: EU EURC
Strengthening HEIS Urban Climate Action
Capacities In Africa & Latin America Through Co-
Creation Living-Labs For Social And Ecological

Problem-Solving

8. Project-based Learning for Empowering EU € 975,335
Graduates in Sustzinable Digital Innovation and
Start-up Creadon- (ProDigi)

9. Project-based learning for empowering graduates EU € 975335
in sustainable digital innovation and start-up

creation - ProDigi

9. Academic Mobility for Sustainable Information  EU £1385,128
and Commurication Technology Human Capital
Developmen:.
9. Solar PV Workforce Skills Centre SlovakAdd €10,090
12. Enhancing the Role of Informaton IUCEA/APH Open

Communicaton Technology-Based Interventions RC
in Promoting Mernital Wellbeing among Older

People in Bast Afvica
Photo: Kibabii University Team participating in AHEAD
Project Transnational Capacity Building Workshop and
Project Management meeting at Kyambogo University,
Kampala-Uganda in November, 2019

S0
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Research Proposals Developed and Submitted for Funding Locally

SM Title of Research Proposal Daonor Amount
Agency {in KShs.
Willions)

L Evaluation of Indigenous herbal products for the NEF 20

management of COVID 19 pandemic in Kenya

2. Establishment of a centre for Anal}rsi:; of Anti-Cancer MNEF 0mA
African Medicinal Plants ({CAAMF)

3. Enhancing rapid COVID 19 Testing by a consortiumn of NEF 20M
University persormel as an  Efficient Tool for
Circumventing Exponential Transmission and spread of
the Disease in the Lake Region Economic Bloe Fural
Population

4,  Leverage Digital Financial Infrastructure in containing NEF 20M
COVID 19 pandemic snd Strengthening Econoenic
Recovery among Counties Bordering Lake Victoma
Kenya

5. Effect of COVID 19 in the Livelihoods of the BEF 20
Commuritias in the Lake Victonia Region of Kenya

6.  Psycho-Social Approsch to Risk Communication and NEF 20M
Community Engagements in Kenya's COVID-19

Response

7. Assessing Environmental Risk factors and Cancer NRF 30
hotspots mapping in Meru and Bungoma Counhes;
Implementation research model for comprehersive
Carwcer Sarveillancs in Kenya

8. Effectivensss of School baged interventions on uptake of MNEF 20M
Human Papilloma Virus (HFV) vaccine among girls
aged 10 years for cervical cancer prevention in Kenya. A
cluster randomised conirol trial

g, Development of an Early Warning Protocol for the MNEF 20nt
Control of Desert Tocusts Invesion in Kenya

10. Locust, Schistocerca Gregaria, Mitigation Strategies for MNEF 2008
Managing Outbreaks to Reduce the Threat to Food
Secuarity

11. Modelling s Multi-Agent Patient Management Robot NEF 200
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Participation in Research Fora

KIBU supports its st2ff and students iraining and exposure by sponsoring them to attend local and
internatonal research, innovation and related fora to share ideas and best practices, and
disseminate research outputs. During the year in review, the University facilitated fifteen (15) staff
and three (3) students to attend such fora,

Research Events Attended in 2019/2020 FY

Attendes/s Event Description Venue and Date
Prof. Isanc Ipara Trier-lindversity Covndl of East Africa Inductan | Entebbe, Uganda
Workshop for Scholarshi
i £= 5 - 7t February 2020

Dr. Kadian W. Wanyama
Dr. Patrick O, Owoche

Tvir. Erick W. Wamalwa CHAWAKAMA MNatonal Convention Embu University
March 6% - 7 2020
ir. Ameos Nyongesa GACCOPA International Delegates and Scientific Kigali Rwanda
Confersnce
dlarch 5t -7 220
Prof. Benedict M. Mutua 1% General Assembly on Austria-Africa-Unilet Vierna, Ausiria
and kick off meeting for African and Austrian February 23 - March
Universities and Research Institations Znd 2020
Dr. Henry 8, Nandalenga IMLD. Mother Languags Conference Masinde Muliro
: _ Llniversity
Mr. Makarias W, Wanjela
February %0 - 21° 2020
Prof, Julius K. Maiyo Connectivity Beyond Classroom: Employability University of Pune and
Skills for Global Teacher Education International HL.G.M. Azan College of
Conference Education in India
Fabruary &% - 7% 2020,
Dr. Fred W. Simlyc CHAKAMA 1019 Internadonal Conference Massai Mare University
Movembar 8t - 9 2019
Dr. Laura N, Mamuli 2 Annual Forensic Victimology and Victim University of Nairebi
Support Kenya October 2™ - 244 2019

Dr. Leunita M. Malkila
Mr, Stanslaus . Watwe Bienmiai Research and Innovation Conberenge Keryatta University

October 22 - 257 2015

American Heart Association & Rescue Services Mairabi
Conference
October 16 to 18t 2019
Ms. Lucy N. Nemusonge International Conference Makerers University,
Uganda
Chetober 14™ - 160 2019
Three studenis Inter  Universities Investigative Journalism Mombasa, Mairobi and
Competition for Journalism Students Kisumu
£ weeks in October-
Maovember, 2019
Mrs. Domitila M. Sibilike International Conference University of Plymouth,
UK
July 17 - 19" 2015
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Research Events Organized

STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO

Title of Event

Event Description

Facilitator and Date

Training Workshop

Training Workshop

Training Workshop

Traiming Workshop

Mavigadon of Research Funding
Cpportunities and Research Grant
Management

Enhancing Change Project Management
for Ecomomic Sustainability in Higher
Education Institutions in Kenya

Research Funding Opporturiges and
Mews

Research Output Packaging for Better
Webometric Ranking

Regearci; Beeline Lid
June 11% 2020

NMT Project

March 31 - gt 2020
Fesearch Beeline Ltd

lanuary 237 2020
TCC-Africa

September 12% 2019

PHOTO: The multidisciplinary research team
between Kibabii University ahd Maoi University
attended the Transforming Energy Access -
Learning Partnership (TEA-LP) Project
workshop in Naircbi in Nevember, 2019. The
workshop was attended by over 500 delegates

from more than 50 countries.
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INNOVATION

The future of any society will depend on its
level of invesiments in iransformative
innovations now. Kibabii  University
endeavors to unlock this potential by
investing heavily in the establishment of
innovation hubs. In its Strategic Flan 2016-
2020, promotion and preservaton of
innovation is one of its strategic objectives. In
promoting innovation, the University has
furnished the recently established Innovation
Hub with state of the art equipment funded
by the AHEAD Project at a cost of Kshs. 1.7m.
The University is also in the process of
completing the NRF funded Kibabii
University Information Communication and
Technology Hub (KICTH) at a cost of KShs.
67m. KICTH will consist of the following state
of the art laboratories in furtherance of
research and irmovation in the University:

1. Forensics

2. E-learning and video conferencing

3. Mobile compuiing, and

4. Incubationcenire

The Hubs are accessible to a large number of
staff, students and other external stakeholders
and with the strong mentorship programme.
They help nurture and mature innovative

STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO:

business ideas tor purpose of
commercializaion, The two hubs have
positioned Kibabii University as a Centre of
Excellence in ICT, Research and Innovation in
the region.

The University’s robotics project has been the
Centre of atiraction in both local and regional
shows and exhibitions. In the 2019/2020 FY,
the University supported a team of staff and
students to a tune of Kshs. 526,000 to prepare
robots and participate in the ROBOKEN
competiion organized by the National
Commission for Science, Technology and
Innovation {NACOSTI).

To institutionalize a culture of innovation and
spur student and staff interest in innovation,
Kibabii University started rolling out annual
Innovation Challenge. The 2019/2020
Inaugural Challenge was sponsored by the
European Union Funded AHEAD Project and
focused on the “Big 4 Agenda”, and drew a lot
of interest from diverse Staff and Student
participants

In an effort to preserve innovation, in the year
2019/2020, the University registered two (2)
trademarks, two (2) copyrights and one (1)
paten.

STATUS OF KIBU IP ASSETS REGISTRATION

TITLE OF INNOVATION INVENTC  IFREFNO. IF TYFE STATUS
EHNAMES REGBOLY
KIBL [Acronym) Wibabil T Mo 106924 Trademark  Certificat of Registration of
University  Kenya Indusirial Trademark Issued
Froperty Instinate
(KIFT)
Kibabii University Kibabi TM Ne:106923 Trademark  Certificate of Registration of
Odficial Logo University ~ Kenya Industrial Trademark issued
Property Instinate
(KIFT)
Exceptional Citizens Ivir. john LT-01489 Kenya Copyright  Certificate of
Android Application Elato Copyrigh Registration of a copyright
Board [KECOBO) work tssued
The 365 Business Plan DrMugand  LT-014897 Copyright  Certificate of
Canvas a Munir Kenya Copyright Registration of a copyright
Board(KECOBO, work issued
An Engine that Applies MrPeter KIPI/PAT/GF/019 Patent Search was successful.
the Principle of Ceupled Prichani (7&4) Recommended to draft final
Force b0 Produce specification and apply for
Mechanical Energy patent/ utility modsl
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PUBLICATIONS DURING THE 2019/2020FY

It is in the culture of the University to engage iis scholars in disseminating their
research findings and outputs in high impact peer reviewed journals. In the year
2019/2020, 77 items including University level books and book chapters and peer
reviewed journal articles were published representing 5.5% increase from the
previous reporting period.

Articles in
peer reviewed
journals

PARTNERSHIPS AND COLLABORATIONS

s Mol with Commonwealth of Learning (COL} to implemeni a Technology-
Enabled Learning platform at KIBU

¢ Mol with Research Beeline Limited to support access to research funding
platform/ data base) to KIBU researchers

= Mol with Austria - Africa UNiNet io facilitate research and waining
@ MoU with Rongo University on the African Library Project.
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KIBU considers efficient and prudent financial,
administrative  end  humsn  resources
management as key to the realization of the
Strategic ~ Direcions.  Good  financial
management ensures maximum application of
resources to  intended areas,  thereby
contributing to the attainment of objectives.
However, good financial management is only
possible where there are good administrative
tnanagement practices.

Once performance outputs and performance
standards have been set, the guality assurance
systern should be able to function as a sensor,
comparator and corrector. The University
endeavors to establish and adhere to Quality

Management System.
We share some highlights of sirides made by

the University towards achievement of this
objectives during the 2019/ 2020FY;

The University undertook the following
activities with the aim of ensuring quality:
* | Chaality assurance forums for class

representatives, acadermic and
administrative staff:

* CAudit of marks for graduating
students;

* COnline course evaluation; and
* [ Review of quality assurance tools.

In addition, in 2019/2020, the Uriversity
accomplished the following:

+ QMS External Quality Audit based on
150 9001:2015 Stendard (Re-certification
Audit): Kibabii University underwent a
QMS External Cuality Audit based on
IS0 9001:2015 Standard (Re-certification
Audit), successfully conducted by 5G5
Kenya, who  recommended  re-
cerfification.

Training of Quality RManagement System Lead
Aunditors: Two Quality Management System
(OMS) lead auditors were ained on QMS

Internal Andits: The University conducted two
(2} internal OMS Audits in February and June,
2020 respactively.

The University signs a performance contract
every year which is aligned to its strategic plan
and the government Agenda, This Contracts are
then cascaded to members of staff for purposas
of implementation. At the end of every financial
year an evaluation is comducted to measure the
University's  performance againsi agreed
targets. The evaluation for the year 2018/2019
was done during the reporting period where
the University scored. Sorne of the areas where
the University performed very well included
while was noted as an ares for improvement.

Kibabii  University  acknowledges  the
importance of its human resource in achieving
its strategic objectives and enmsures that their
welfare is prioritized through capacity building,
provision of & good working environment and
offering competitive remuneration,

Staff establishment met gender ratio and age
representation as illusirated below:

84
204 PEMALE
MALE STAPE
STAFT TOTAL
STAFF

388

53% £7%
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Age of Staff Distribution Age of Staff Distribution

ToafeT e ey 0%

Age Category {Yrs) Mo, of Staft ) |

9-24 i g/
25-34 Jja

35-44 155

45 .54 122

55-g64 8

65 AMD ABOVE 3

TOTAL 358

Persons Living With Disability

Two (2 staff living with disability (PLWD) were in Employment for the
i period ending 2019/2000 and Kibabii University will continuously

encourage recruitment of FLWD,

Ocrupational Safety and Health

The University is registered with Directorate of Occupational Safety and
Hesith, It has since constituted an Occupational Safety and Health
Committee.

» The University supported a staff from the Faculty of Science to attend a Mathematics
summer school in the Undversity of Durban, South Africa.

» One staif was supported to attend a workshop on Contacts of Minutes and Minutes
writing that was held at Kenya School of Government from Sth to 11th October, 2019,

- The University selected a team of Seven Researchers to attend a fraining workshop
organized by National Research Fund (NRF) on capacity building to enhance Research
skills,

= The University nominated and supported three (3) staff from the School of Computing
and Informatics (SCAI) to attend a wvirtual IBM Skilis training on cloud application
developer. The training was organized and facilitated by IBM in 2020,

s The University supported one member of staff to attend a Dialogue on Innovative Higher
Education Strategies (DIES) online Training Course on Management of
Internationalization, The course is organized by DIES courtesy of Leibniz Universitit
Hannover, the German Acadernic Exchange Service (DAAD), and the German Rectors’
Conference {HRK). It is aimed at qualifying managers of international affairs and
linkages at Universities in developing countries to manage the processes and tasks of
internationalization in the area of higher education.
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+  The University also conducted training needs analysis that led to (3) members of staff to
be facilitated o attend Senior Management Courses at Kenya School of Government and
nine (%) members of staff were facilitated to attend short courses.

The Administration and Human Resource Department organized for an induction training
of its newly appointed staff for two days on 10th and 1ith February, 2020.5taff induction
gives new staff the insight of the institution they are working in and enables them to adjust
for efficient service delivery. The exetcise was facilitated by internal members of staff led by
the Vice chancellor. It was conducted for two days covering & wide range of issues that are
quite fundamental to newly appointed members of staff to familiarize themselves with the
mandate and what Kibabii University stands for.

During 2019/2020 Financial Year, fifty three (53) staff were recruited inic the service of
Kibabii University and fourteen (14) internal staff who had attained raquired qualifications
were promoted o fill staffing gaps as per scheme of service.

Kibabii University has a reward and recognition policy to motivate staff. It also serves to
build a better employment deal, hold on to good employees and fo reduce employee
turnover. The University also has non-financial rewards such as recognition, iraining,
development and increased job responsibility. The reward system also increases staffs
willingness to work in the University leading to enhanced productivity.

The University has a salary raise reward system that serves to build 2 better ernployment
deal, hold on to good employees and to reduce employee turnover. The University also has
non-financial rewards such as recognition, training, development and increased job
responsibility. The reward system also increases siaffs willingness to work at the University
and enhance their productivity.

Photo: & section of new staffers
iaking the oain of secrecy durlng
induction avent
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION FOUR

STRATEGIC DIRECTION FOUR: INVEST IN MARKETING AND PUBLIC
RELATIONS
Marketing and Public Relations are irnportant aspecis of the Jraversity in promoting its
public image, During the year in review, the University establichec ths Public Relations
and Marketing Office to coordinate activities aimed at promoring Kipabii University's
image through enhancement of its visibility; and strengthen merketing of the University
and her programmes.
The following are highlights of Public relations and Marketing zctivities during the
FY2019/2020;
Participation in Shows and Exhibitions
The University partcipated in the 2019 ASK Bungoma Satellite Show where, iis
innovations and research outpuis were show cased. The University entered io compete in
five (5} classes during the show and won in four. The University wac alsc honoured io
publish three articles in the show catalogue,
KIBU in collaboration with the Ministry of Trade, Couniy Government of Bungoma
jointly sponsored four {4) Kibabii University staff to participate in the 20th Bast African
Community MSME Trade Fair in Kigali Rwanda. KIBU was fhe cody University from
Kenya at the International Trade Fair. The University used the oppormunity to showcase
their innovations as well as market the University and its Programmmes caring the ten-day
event. The following innovations were displayed at the exhibiticn by University staff:

&) Vegetable Drier Pane!

b} Building Consouction Robotic

¢} Accounting Management Information System; and

d) Schoo. Information Mansgement System
KIBL's the vegetable driar panel innovation selected as one {1} of the best ten {10) unique
mmovatons
The University was honoured to publish cne (1) article; “Desert locusis 'invasion in
Kenya: Sustmainable Management Approach” in the Eldoret NeHona! Show, ASK Show
Catalogue
The University also participated in the Nation Media Group Cereers Expo themed
‘Connecting you to your Future” that was held at Jomo Keryata Sports Ground in
Kisumu. The two-day event attracted 28 Universities and Colleges anc wae attended by
students from a number of Secondary Schools and Colleges. It alss laid & platform for
Universities to interact with high school graduates.

Launch of a Bi-Maonthly Newsletter

To ensure the University actvities, events, research interests znd smaoent engagements
are well cantered and communicated both internally and externzlly. the Public Relations
Office launched a newsletier dubbed “KIBU NEWSWEEK". By the dme of this review,
the editorial team had hit 8 releases and wpbeat to do more in the coming financial year,
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION FIVE:

STRATEGIC DIRECTION FIVE: EXPAND, MAINTAIN AND IMPROVE
PHYSICAL FACILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

To ensure excellence in teaching, learning, consultancy, research and extension
KIBU's has continued #o expand, maintain and improve its physical facilities and
infrastructure. Some of the successes recorded in expansicn of physical
infrastructure during the year in review werg;

Construcion of a Mew Hostel

The University through the support of the government constructed & new hostel for
ferale students with a bed capacity of 412, raising the number of Hostels o five,
three for female and two for male students. This has raised the Universities
accommodation capacity from the previous 1,536 0 1,948 students. In constructing
this facility, the University ensured that it was accessibie by sersons living with
disabilities by providing rooms on the ground floor for easy access, provision of
two special toilets and bathrooms in every hostel, provisior. of ramps at both
entranices of the hostel and provision of self-contained rooms for persons living
with disabilities.
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION Six®

STRATEGIC DIRECTION SIX: PROVIDE QUALITY HEALTH CARE GERVICES

Health issues have great impact on & nation and her insttutions such as KIBU in
de—livering her mandate. In consideration of the government's Big Four Agenda,
KIBU has continued to sirategically address existing and emerging health trends
and health relat~ed issues that may directly or indirectly affect productivity of her
staff and studenis. During the year in review the University is happy to report the
following two key achievements;

PROCUREMENT OF MODERN AMBULANCE

The University procured a modern ambulance to provide emergency services o
staff and studenis. The ambulance will also serve 25 an income Generating Project
to the University as it will be hired out to the community at an affordable cost.

PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF SPREAD OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC WITHIN
THE UNIVERSITY

With the onset of the gicbal pandemic; COVID-13, The University established a
University Covid-19 Response Commities, which spearheaded responses toward
containment of the disease. Through this commites staffs were provided with
KING5 facial masks and alcohol based hand sanitizers. Hand-wash basing were aiso
installed at the University (main gate) and therme gun temperature screening for
covid-19 introduced at the main gate by health workers and security guards.

KIBABI LINIVERSITY | B85



FINANCIAL

PERFORMANCE




FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL PERFOMANCE

The global COVID-1% panderndc has had a negative
impact on the ecoromy globaily. Kibabii University
was not spared as revenue targets for the fourth
quarter were not met The University also had o
suspend all planmed capital development activities
due to a downward revision of the Universiy's
Capital development budpet.

The University had to reassess its risks and revise its
budgets to allow for mitization messures againet the
risks asgociated with the COVID-19 disease To
ensure continuity of University buasiness, the
University had to incur additional expenses which
had not been envisioned at the time of budgeting
incdluding: training of faculey and staff az well as
putting in place infrastructure to enable the ase of
internet for meetings, teaching and leaming.

Resulis

During the year in review, the Undversity recorded a
surplus of Kshs 2.2 million & 4% drop from Kshs
8.02 million reported last year, This is attributed o
the growing needs against an almost stagnans
revenue base, the ith guarter revenue targets were
also not met as the Undversity had © suspena its
activities in & bid to confain the spread of the
COVID-1% disease.

Below is the University financial parformance trend
over the last 5 years;

I" I =

el ¥
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Total Incoma/Scurces of Income

Qur total ircome ncreased by 1% to
¥shs, 1.270 killion up from Kshs. 1.250
billion reported last year. This

comprized of 48% and 10% from
government capitation for recurrent
snd capital develcpment respectively.
&% from granis and donations and 36%
from ALA Tuition fees contributed the
biggest percentage (60%) of the ALA

INCOTe,
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Development Grants

During the FY2015/2020, the Umsversify had a
-apital development ailoceton of Kshs. 500,000,000
from the exchequer. Of this allocation, Kshs.
30,424,759 had beer recelved as at the end of
suarter 3. The University did not receive the balance
of Kshs. 169,575,241 as expected dug to revisions
miade by the govers mern: during Supplementary I
where capital development was felted by the
Sovernment to aflo-w channelling of funds towards
the fight against the global pandemis; the Covid-1%
alsease.

et Waorth
“ur net worth grewr from Kshs 0372 Billion o
Zshe. 28 Billlon & the yoar under teview; fns

represenis a 34% growte.

_i_u-..'th iR NE'[!TW arEh

Compliance with Statutory Requirernents

in the yesr under review, Kibapii University

complied with all the stz matory obligadons.

Contingent Liabilitizs

Craring the FY2012/ 2020 the University had four on

ZOINg cases;

) Bungoma NC Fetiton ne 15 of 2016. David
Muramb: and two (2) others VS the Country
Government of Sungoma and Kitabii University
for trespass o property. The tofal exposure to
the University is Ksh. 2.5 Million. The University
seeks an out of court settlement through
mediation and will continues to pursue this
avenue for amiceble resolution.
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b) Bungoma Employment and Labour
Relations Court Cause No. 61 of
2018 Walubengo Singore Muliro V5
Kibabii University. The labdity is
yet to be determined,

) Kisumu Employment ancd Labour
Reiations Court Cause No. 61 of
2018 Prof Shem O. Aywa V5 the
Chairman of Council, the
Chancellor Kibabii University and
Public Service Comumission. The
liability has not been determined.

4} Bungoma CMC MC ELC No 14 of
3020, Beairice N, Wanjala and
another V& County Comendssiornier,
County Commendant and Vice
Chancellor - ¥ibabii University.
This 1§ an injunction restraining the
respondents  from  interfering
trespassing, developing,
constructing, or in any other way
interfering with the Flamtiff's L.R.
No Hast Bularsu,/ North
Kanduyi/ 888

Kevy  Projects and Investment

Decisions the University s
Flanning/Implementing
a} Women Students Hastel

(Completed)

The project will incresss access 1o
University education i line with the
sustainable development goal onm
education. The project was financed by
the Goversment of Kenya and was
completed and comumissioned  during
the 2019/ 2020 Financial Year

b} Kibabii University Information
Communication and Technology
Hub (KICTH)

This project, which will consist of state
of the art forensics, E-learning and
video conferencing, Mobile computing,
snd Incubation laboratories was funded
by the Natonal Research Fund.
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The Hub will be accessible tu 2 large
number of st@aff, smdents snd other
externai stakeholders and will help nurtare
and matore mrovative business deas for
purpose of commercializadon. The hubs
will position Kibabil University as a Centre
of Excellence in ICT, Research and
Innovation in the region. The project was
at 30% compietion a5 at the close of the

reporting period.

¢} CCTV Surveillance

This Project will enhance security and aid
in invigilation in order to ensure continued
integrity of University Examin:dons. The
project, which was hunded from A LA was
completed and commissioned during the
reporting period.

Planned Projects

a) School of Nursing

The aim of the project is o promote
research, innovation and healtiicars. This
will contribute to reduction of diseases and
therefore increase productvicy in our
society. The project is intended to be
financed by the Government of Kenya. The
University has submitted the programme
t0 the Commission for University
Educaticn (CUE) for Accreditation.

b. Proposed Sports Fields

This projsct is atmed at keeping the
students engaped and will allow them ©
channel their energies in Constructive
activities, the sports felds wili also be
utilized for Jeaming purposas and as an
income peneration Unit for the University
it will also position the University at a
strategic advantage over other Universities
within the region therefore atracting
students. The project i planned for
implementation in the FY2020,/2021 and
will be financed by the Govemnment of
Kenya.
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c) Proposed Ulma- MModern Stmdent
Centre

Establishment of & Business aad Studenis
Centre is one of e :irasegies that have
been idendfied giobaly as a means of
managing studenzs w.thin instiutons of
higher learning. Tnis project will provide
as avenue for engezing the growing
nomber: of - smceats and - safely
magintzining ther within the University.
It ciffer a comprensnsive fadiity o house
students recventi-aal and socialization
needs, it will prov e & aémcsphere for 2
common life zad cutivated sodal
progeam for the varied popuiaton of the
studerts, facuity and Aluopi of the
University it will e a focus of University
community life where srodents and staff
would have an ample opportunity to
interact and also meubate ideas that
would go a long way in enhancing
innovsdons. The srojac: is wlanned for
implemenmiion in the  2020/2021
Financial Year a:.2 vl be rinanced by
the Government 7 Keove

d} Purchase of Lasoracory Eqmpment

In pursuit of its vision of being a globai
and dimamec University of sxcellenice In
Science, Technology and Inovation,
Kibabi: University plass to equip and
modernize its laboratoriss a8 a way of
workirg towards the oromotion and
maintenance of =xcellence in teaching
and leaming. The University I8 in the
process of procuritg squipment for
eleven (11} laborziories 20 a cost of Ksh
50 milion in tha 2020/2021 bHnancial
Year. This will go 2 long way iIn
improving  the  students  leaming
sxperience, futher donancmg the gualic
of graduates produced for the local and
internadonal labowr c.arset The project
will be financed oy the Govemment of
Kenys.
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Major Risks Facing the University

The University financial assets are brade
receivables and cash and short term deposiis
which arise directly from its operatons. The
University has financizl liabilities comprising
trade and other payables.

The University has exposure to the following
risks:

i. Market risks
i, Liguidity risks
ifi. Crodit risks

The Council has overal! responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the
University's risk management framswork.

The University’s risk management policies
are established to identify and anslyse the
risks faced by the University. fo set
appropriate risk Himits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are
reviewed reguiarly to reflect changes in
economic conditions and the organization's
activities. The Vice Chancellor oversees how
management mornétors compliance with the
University's risk management poiicies and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the University.

Market risks

Interest rate visk

The University has no inierest bearing
borrowings or investments and is financed
by cash generated from its operations. This

risk was therefore not applicable in the
quarter under raview,

Foreign curzency risk

The  University  undertakes  certain
transactions  demominated in  foreign
currencies, mainly the US Dollar. This results
in exposures to exchange rate fluctuations.
The balances impacted in this regard are the
balance due fo peyments in  foreign
currencies.

KIRAR LHERSITY |

Exchange rate exposures are managed within
approved policy parameters utilizing
matching of assets and liabilifies.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the University
will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fail due. The University's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the University's
reputaticn. Typically, the University ensures
that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet
expected operational expenses for a period of
30 days, including the servicing of financial
obligations. This excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters and political viclence. All iquidity
policies and procedures are subject to review
and approval by the Council. All capital
investments are funded by the Government.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financiai loss to the
University if a customer or counter party to a
financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the organization's receivables from
customers. The University receives fees from
students which mimimizes the credit risk
exposure, The University has a student's fees
payment policy which defines how and
when fees are supposed to be paid hence
muiminizes credik risk.

All the University's receivables are fully
performing and are expected to be repaid.

Bank balance includes cash in hand and

deposits held with banks. Bank balances are
not restricted to any use by the client.

Material Arrears ia Statutory/Financial
Obligations

The Urndversity did not have any material
arrears in statutory/financial obligations as
at the end of the year under review.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

KIBU exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind everything we do.
It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is founided on our six strategic directions. In
our operations we recognize the need of putting the customer/Citizen first, delivering relevant
goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is a brief highlight of our

achievemerits:

Sustainability strategy and profile

From the year 2015, the education sector reforms that focused on improvement of the quality of
Education resulted in 2 reduction in number of students qualifying for University Education in
Kenya. This affected the Higher Education sectors across the country as most of the Universities
were unable to absorb students to fill their declared capacity. Kibabii University was equally
affected with student numbers decreasing significantiy and affecting grossly the Frivately
Sponsored Student Programme. This meant that this funding stream was grossiy affected, The
Universities found themselves competing for the same students with other Local Public and
Private Universities as well as International Universities.

To ensure sustainability, KIBU has continued o review existing programmes and develop new
market driven programmes that will be attractive to students. The University has also invested
in its human rescurce to ensure improved quality of services offered to students and other
stakeholders. To enhance student catchment, the University continues to diversify the courses on
offer by introducing Technical and Vocational (TVET) courses, and offering online courses
which are also aimed at attracting international students.

Environwmental Performance

KIBU coniinues to play a significant role in environmental conservation and sustainability.
During the year in review, the University participated in the 2020 Mational Tree Planting
Campaign themed “Fanda miti, boresha maisha” at Kaberua rorest Station, Kibuk River in
Bungoma County.

Kibabii University led by Vice Chencellor, and members of Kaberua community participated in
the tree planting exercise where over 5,000 tree seedlings were planted in Mt. Elgon - a key water
catchment tower in the region.

Additionally, the University continues to sustain its greening initiatives by maintaining over
70% green cover by planting and maintenance of flora in all strategic locations in the University.

Market place practices

Kibabii University endeavours to maintain the highest standards of ethics and instils a culture of
integrity among the members of staff. KIBU adheres to the provisions of the Constitution of
Kenya 2010 ansd carries all its activities and dealings in a transparent manner. This has fostered
good supplier and other stake holder relations

The University s also I50 9001:2015 certified and prides itself in provision of quality services to
its stakeholders. Stake holder feedback is used for continuous improvement. To this end, KIBU's
products and services are vetted and subjected to externalization to ensure that our students and
other customers receive quality services and get value for money.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Suppiler relations achisvaments during the FY2019/2520:

——— T,
]

I ‘ Suppliers neduction in
‘- Women and G PO HP:E?E r::,?t..,-.ﬁ - Suaplier
. Persons Living P 50 days Complainis

| with Disabiiities |

Communilty Engagements

Corporate Social Respongibillty [CER
¢ Natlonal Education Weelk.

Diciributed sanitary towels to girle sitiing XCPE exams in 201% in Bungoma |
County. i
* Workshop on Project Management

Trained officers in-charge of project implementation in schools within Bungoma
County

¢ Kibabii Polics Pairol Base

Construction of the Kibabii Police Patrol bese now aquipped and Cridcal
Infrastructure Protection Unit (CIPU)} enhanced

¢ Beyond Zero Marsthon

KIBU support s the Covernment Apgenda on Health end was represeniad at the
Marathon aimed at improving Maternal health care

o Community Cuizeach on COVID-19

To help Contain the COVID-19 disease, KIBU sensitized the Cornmumnity, donated
masks, sanitizers and soap to our students, and poor households in the community
as well as the marke? places

* Bungoma Agriczimral Show |
KIBU Constructed a VIP gate at the Bungoma ASK Show ground and l
conducted a Free medical Camp during the Bungoma ASK show
¢ African Liteery Preject

Donated Library materials to Weems Childrens' home

ivities
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During the fourihi quarter of FY2019,/2020, the Undversity fraiercity made personal and
institutional contributions to the government COVID-1% panderic kitty, thereby boosting iis
fight against the spread of the disease. Additionally, apart from being actively involved in
underiaking research activities on intervention measures, the University alse received
approval from the Kenya Bureau of Standards to produce sanitizer and liquid scas.
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REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

The University Council submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 which show the state of the University’s

affairs,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the University continue to be provision of higher education,
regearch and extension services.

Results

The results of the University for the Year ended June 30, 2020 are set out on page 77

University Council
The members of the University Council who served duting the year ave shown on
page 12-16

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the University for the
year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya

angd the Public Audit Act 2015

By Ovder of the Council

VICE CHANCELLOR

Daie*\::_:&:-\xp U&K‘.&s.qgﬂ‘”
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STATEMENT OF UNIVERSITY COUNCIL'S RESPONSIRILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finanre Management Act, 2012, section 14 of the State Corporations Act,
and section 47 of the University's Act, 2012 require the University Council to prepare Anancial
statements in respect of the University, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
University at the end of the financial year and the operating results of the University for that year
The Council is also responsible for ensuring that the University keeps proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the University. The Councll is
also responsibe for saleguarding the assets of the University,

The Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the University's financial
statements, wiich give a trus and fair vivw of the state of affairs of the University for and as at the
end of the financial year ended on June 30, 2020. This resporsibility ncludes: maintaining
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue o be affective
throughout the reporting period; maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the fAnancial position of the University; designing, implementing
andl mauntaining imternal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free fromn material misstatements, whether due o arror or
fraud; safeguarding the asesis of the University; selecting and applying appropriate atcounking
policies: and Making accounting esdmates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The University Council accept responsibility for the University's financial stutements, which have
been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prodent
judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
{IFSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the Univemity’s Act. The Council
is of the opinion thal the University's finandial staternents give a true and fair view of the stabe of
The University's transactions during the finandal year ended June 30, 2020, and of its fnancial
position as at that date. The Couscil further confirms the completeness of the accounting records
maintained for the University, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the University’s
financial staternents as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nuthing has come t0 the attention of the Council to indicate that the University will not remain »
Foing concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement,

Approval of the financial statements

The University's financial statements were approved by the Council on
SRR A T O T e L

/ g .

4+ Chairperson of Couneil Vice Chancellor
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REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON THE UNIVERSITY'S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUMNE, 2020
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Telephone: +254-(20) 3214000 HEADQUARTERS
E-mail: infefoagkenya.goke Anniversary Towers
3 Monrovia Street

Wiabsite! wwwoagkenya.go.ke
E g, y -
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GEMNERAL P.0, Box 30084-00100

: ! g MAIROE|
Erhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KIBABII UNIVERSITY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE, 2020

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kibabii University set out on
pages 78 to 118, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2020,
and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets,
statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have cbtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respacts, the financial position of the Kibabii University as at 30 June, 2020, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Universities Act, 2012 and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Receivables from Exchange Transactions

As discussed in Note 24 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.256,862,020 which
includes student debtors fee balance of Kshs 253 644,029 However, examination of
supporting documenis revealed that an amount of Kshs 28,833 449 of the student’s
debtors relates to students who have since graduated while an amount of Kshs.2,219,070
relates to students who have deferred their courses. Although clause 14.3 of the student’s
handbook stipulates that a student can be allowed to defer studies for a period of three
years, a total of Kshs 226,700 has been outstanding for a period of more than three years.

Further, an amount of Kshs.123,002,005 relates to students who were active but not
reported in the system. Although Management explained that it was the responsibility of
the students to report in the system, it has not explained why it has taken foo long to
enforce compliance. Management has also indicated that the certificates were still under
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its custody and would only be issued upon fees clearance. The University has appointed
a debt management committee to assess the recoverability of the debts but details of the
certificates withheld on fee defaulting, Council minutes approving graduation of students
with fee balance and report by the appointed debt management committee were not
availed for review.,

In the circumstances, the recoverability of the student fee debtor balance of
Kshs. 253,644,029 could not be confirmed while the huge fees arrears continue to impact
negatively on the University's budget implementation due to low revenue collection.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards of Supreme
Audit Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Kibabii University Management in
accordance with ISSAl 130 on the Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAl and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements, There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(68) of the Constitution, except for the matters described in the
Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section
of my report, based on the audit procedures performed, | confirm that nothing else has
come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion
1. Non-Compliance with the Law on Fiscal Responsibility - Wage Bill

The statements of financial performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.B81,784,372
against compensation of employees representing 74% of the total receipts of
Kshs.1,193,554 67 1. This is contrary to the provisions of Regulation 26(1) (a) of the Public
Finance Management Regulations, 2015 which limits the Government enfity's
expenditure on wages and benefits to not more than 35% of the total revenue for the year.
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Further, the University spent Kshs. 881,784 372 on employee cost against a budgeted
figure of Kshs 769,025,392 resulting in an over-expenditure of Kshs.112,754,880. No
explanation was provided for the excess expenditure incurred on employee cost during
the year under review.

In the circumstances, Management is in breach of the law.
2. Non-Compliance with Law on Ethnic Composition

During the year under review, the total number of employees of University was four
hundred and forty (440) out of which three hundred and thirty-one (331) or 75% were
members of the dominant ethnic community in the county. Further, the University
recruited thirty-three (33) officers during the year under review out of whom nineteen (19)
or (58%) were from the dominant ethnic community in the County.

This is contrary to Section 7(1) and (2) of the National Cohesion and Integration Act, 2008
which states that, “all public offices shall seek to represent the diversity of the peaple of
Kenya in employment of staff and that no public institution shall have more than one third
of its staff establishment from the same ethnic community”.

In the circumstances, Management is in breach of the law.
3. Non-Compliance with the One Third of Basic Salary Rule

Analysis of the University's payroll for the year under review revealed that a number of
employees earned a net salary of less than a third (1/3) of the basic salary contrary to
Section C.1(3) of the Public Service Commission (PSC) Human Resource Policies, 2016.
The Management has not given explanation for failure to comply with the policy.

In the circumstances, Management is in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions, and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, | confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.
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Basis for Conclusion

Lack of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Continuity and Disaster
Recovery Plan

A review of the University's ICT governance documents revealed that the University did
not have an ICT continuity and disaster recovery plan. As a result, no documented and
tested emergency procedure had been put in place.

Consequently, the University faces the risk of disruption of services in case of disasters.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and IS5A1 2330, The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management, and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and The University Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basig) and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatermnent, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the University or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

The University Council is responsible for overseeing the University's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
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a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance review is planned and
performed to express a conclusion with limited assurance as to whether, in all material
respects, the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
staterments are in compliance with the authorities that govern them in accordance with
the provisions of Aricle 229(6) of the Constitution and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. The nature, timing, and extent of the
compliance work are limited compared to that designed to express an opinion with
reasonable assurance on the financial statements.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and review of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 228(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a time period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with 1SSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and for the purpose of
giving assurance on the effectiveness of the University's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to
continue to sustain its service.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA Na , CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

26 January, 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE, 2020

Surplus/{ deflelt) for the perlod/year
Hemission to National 1 reas

The notes set out on pages B4 +o 110 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE, 2020

LU P

Il..'-!l'-.

Assets
Current Asgats
Cash and Cash Equivalents 22 288.372.660 | 255,607,072
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions b 52,098,040 30,71.316
Receivabies from Exchange Transactions 24 256,862,020 266,385,511
Inveniories 5 6,098 479 8496382
63,431,199 581,212,281
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 26 2,304,477 B85 2,[193.070,461
Intangible Assets 27 27,144 9,066,095
2,204,505,029 2,102,136,557 |
Total Assets 25807 936,228 2,683,348 838
Liabilities
'_f.u.n'enr Liabilities
e —— I .
Rehundable Deposits from Customers b 8,257 650 8,662,550 |
Deferred Income 30 39,678,125 51,855 360
Employee benefit obligation n D297 86,293 582
Fayments Received in advance 32 24,767,912 40,214 144
Provisions i3 52,598,040 43,123 208
302,019,530 308,730,652
Total Liabilities 302,015,530 308,730,652
Net Assets 2,505,916,698 2,374,618, 18
Reserves 2,225482,751 2,135,864, 168
Revenue Resorves 280,433,947 738,754,018
Capital Fund 2.505,915,698  2,374,618,186
Total Met Agsets and Liabilities 2,807, 936,225 2,683 348 838

The Financial Statements set out on pages 78 1o 110 were signed un behalf of the University Couneil

b}“.‘ - .
e = b . l i
(A = : j@h'
e .
VICE CHANCELLOR HEAD OF FINANCE CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL

NAME: © /& | h _
AME: MNAME:
- \ ICPAK MEMBER NO: 7492 "

DATE: \'4 Hgﬁ‘wﬁ DATE: | '::g'\‘ -,_4\ 9 o) DATE: A& L.}-’llf}t i
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES N NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

2020

Revaluation

I'olal

Reserves

KIBABI UIMIWERSTTY |

At Juiy 1, 2008 7 1,434,485,2%6 2,224,929,19

Total comprehensive

income i G 10337755 10,337,755

Capital] Development

grants received during the

year 139,351,235 2 ] 139,351,235

Transfer of

Depreciation/ amorbzatio

n from capital fund

retained earnings -19,815,690 D 19,815,690 0

At June 30, 2019 701,378,872 1,434,485,296 238,754,018 2,374,618,186

At July 1, 2019 701,378,872 1,434,485.296 | 238,754,018 2,374,618,185
 Total comprehersive

income gt 0 L 873,753 873,753
[ Capital/ Development

grants received during the

year 130,424 759 g o 130,424,759

Transfer of

Depreciation/amortisatio

n from capital fund to

Setaimed cating -40,806,176 0 40,806,176 0

Al June 30, 2020 790,597,455 1,434,885,296 280,433,947 2,505,916,698

&0




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2T 20

Kok,

ENDED 30 JUNE, 20620

2 R4

kshs.

KIBAB LIMIVERSITY |

Caah Flowa from Operating Activities H
Recalpis i
Other Organizations! Grants 6{b) 7,671,709 12,(36403
Public Contributiors and Donations 7(b) 100,000 519,500
Teansfers from Governmend- Exchequer Grants 8{b) 561,079,546 o o
Rendering of Services 10(b) Zrnagem0 | 340,668 425
IGU Reverue 1 25,766,718 | 26,229,122
Rental Revene iz 2,495,360 | 2,589,540 |
Use of goods and services 13() | 11311862 | 13292077 |
Total Receipts ! L senues | L2008 |
Paymenss i |
Compensaticn of Employess E i5¢b) B43,810,124 731,580,801
Remuneration of Council Members 16 [ 18,546,064 16,095,820 |
General Expenses 190y 149,086,523 201,764,240
Repairs and Maintenance 1t 11 813,200 8,550,542
PR & Markating Costs o | 2487502 | 4728084 |
Total Payments :
| 1025743858 1 ..4".@&19&.4
Met Cash Flows from Operating Activitizs # i 846,510 | 157,625,175
Cash Fows from Investing Actvities i
¢ |
Purchase of Property, Plent, BEquipment and Intangible Asgeis . — 1 16255088
Met Cash Flows used in Investing Activities 146,950,033 | 5 g2 |
Cash Flows from Financing Activities i
Capital Developmant Granis i) 130,426,759 | 136,653,235 |
Met Cash Flows wsed in Financing Astvities ! 130,424,759 il 136,653,235
| Met increasefidecrasse) in Cash and Cash Squivalents ' e
: 32,421,357 | 151,786,528
sz421.37 | mns,m
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 July, 2019 22 255 607,072 23,888,544 |
Cash end Cash Equivalenss at 30 June, 2020 j 2 : 265,008,405 | w
81



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF RUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Egvenue from non- ' ;
[emhm:h‘mﬂ-ﬁdiuns ! ]

Other Organizationai | 1

Grants i 665493021 (3131093 ) 352384001  J76a7sad| FSNBESL 221 2
Publle contribations and :
| donations | : : 45100000}  (46100,000)1 1001 3
P ]
|
 Excheguer Granis j ﬂgéﬁ_@! - 610,356,350 611,356,330

GoE Grants 2017201 o i

CBA Arrears " 52 (98,040 52 095,040 . 52098040 100) 4
Revenue from non- | |

xchange ranssctons 676,005,632 § 20,787,147 697,682,779 688,103,574 13,588,905

Revenus from axchange |

iranssciomns - -

Rendering of services- i

Tuitton Feas Mg&_ﬁﬂﬂg 7 o 288 Fa) Jig 286,314,485 10,005,815 3

H
! i

IGU Inepmes 1 22.000,000 4 - 22,000,000 § 23,784,303 303} (8
Rental reverus 2,300,000 - 2,300,000 Z.458 360 (19836031 (9)
Use of goods and 5

services B44T1 480 | - 54,451 450 87,385,739 (2894250)) (3]
Total revenue from 1 i

exchange transactions | 377.215401| ___ 37896382 405,131,790 359,982,807 5,128,892

Total Revenue 1054121 033 45 683535 1 55 1,084 086,771 18,717,797
 Expenges

Employes costs 697,431,351 19,500,000 716,931 351 Foa 27443 |  (76.343492)] (1)
CBA 2017-2021 Arvesrs -] 52,098,040 52,098 040 - 52,0950401 100] 5
Femuneration of i ]

directors 16,000,000 | 2,000,000 18,000,000 18,546,054 (56,0643 | (3
Depreciation &

amartizaonexpense | i 6,281,359 91,281,383 93,506,155 {2224.767) | {2)
FRepairs and

maintenance 11,600,000 115,000 11,715,000 11,618 Qm4ad0] (1)
Creneral expernsas 238 895,002 3 207,585,138 208.423,297 a1 737 2
PR &Marketing Cosiz 5193660 - 5,193,660 3,013,787 71794730 42| 6
Su EnSEs 3 123 023 44,683,538 i a2 113,568 587 20,778,008 |

Total Expenses f 1,056,121 083 48583536 1,202306569|  1123562587|  (20.778018)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 ! P o .y ol =4 & ]
i. Thevhanges betwesn the original and fing] budget

The University’s approved budget for 2019/2020 financial was of XKshs.l, 054,121,033 and
Kshs.300, 000,000 for recurrent and capital development expenditure respectively. The recurrent
budget was revised upwards by Kshs 48, 683,536 to a final revised recurrent budget of Kshsl,
102,804,569 ,This revision was informed by additional exchequer grant allocations of Kshs.77,
409,357 out of which Kshs.52, 058,040 was to be utilized for payment of arrears due from the
2017-2021 Collective Bargaining Agreements signed between the three Unions; UASU, KUSU and
KUDHEIHA and kshs.27, 895,380 From ALA.

In addition to this the University made other revisions to address issues that emerged after initial
budget aporoval which could not be anhicipsted at the #ime of budgedng e.g COVID-1%

conainment expenses and to ensure that items and/or actvitdes that were not captured ara
included and vote heads that may have had high allocation re-examined and funds reailocated tc

budget lines that had lower eliocation and require additiona! funding.

The capital development budget or: the other hand was reduced by KSh 166, 575,241 As a result
of a budget cut by the government zimed at halting all capital development projects to allow for
chamneling of funds towards the containment of the novel COVID-19 diseasa.

2. Other Organizatonal Grangs

The Under expenditure under this vote head resulted from a vendor not honouwring their
obligations under the contract which Ied to re advertisement of tenders and therefore delayed
irnplemeniation

&, Pablic Conbributions and Donations

The University Received Kshs.46 rillion worth of book donations which had not beer: anticipated
at the time of budgeting, hence the variance

i T LY i 1A T i TH i e
4, {aal Granks 7300 CBA Arrasrs

The University had not received funds for payment of CBA Arrears from the Government of
Kenya as at the end of financial year 2019/ 20.This was due court dizsputes on imnplementation of
the collective bargaining agreement

5, CRA 2017-2021 Arreacy

This under expenditure resulted from delayed disbursement of funds to pay the 2017-2021 CBA
Arrears

< T © R P O
o I e g Lasts

The University was sble to save marketing cost by 42%. This was as result of Memorandum of
understanding with Nation media who offered to advertise the university programries for free as
an after sale service.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Kibabii University is established by Kibabii University Charter, 2015 and derives its authority and
accountability from the University’s Act. The University is wholly owned by the Government of
Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The University’'s principal activity is to provide teaching,
research and extension services,

2. STATEMIENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREFARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment at fair value and impaired
assets at their estmated recoverable amounis. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of
estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of
applying the University's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or compiexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in Note Z8.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the University.

The financia!l statements have been prepared in accordance with the FFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, The University’s Act and International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
i. New and amended siandards and interpretations in issue bui not yet effective in the year ended

30 June 2020

Standard Effective date and impack

IPSAS 42 Social Benefits |Applicable: 19 January 2022

The objective of this Stnderd is to improve the relevance, faithful

represents tveness and comparability of the information that a reporting|

entity provides in its financial smiements about social benefits. The

information provided should help users of the financial statements and|

general prsposs financial reports sssess.

a) The nature of such sccial benefits provided by the entity;

b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

] The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity’s financial
performance, financial position and cash flows.

EIBABI UMIVERSITY |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES 70 THE FIRNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Improvements to  |Applicatle: 1% Jamunry 2027:

IPSAS g}  Amendments to [PSAS 13, 1o include ths aprropriace references
te IPSAS on impéirment, in place of the Jurrent refecenres to
oiher inzermational and for national accounnng framaworks

by IFSAS13, Leases and IFSAS 17, Property, Fiza, and Equipmeni.

Ammwmtpmﬁmmw
have been deleted when [PSAS 33, First Tin: Adcption of
Accraal Basis Internanenal Public Seciar Acseuniing Standards

[iPSASs) was approved
&) IPSAS 2], impeirment of Non-Cash-Generaring Assets and
IP5A5 256, Impairment of Cesh Generanng ~ss580.
A mendments to ensure consistency o iny 2irnen: guidance to
sccount for revalued assets in the scooe of IPSAS 17, Property,
5 Flant, snd Equipment and IPSAS 31, nitan gibla Apsets.

iEL}- IPSAS 33, First-time Adoption of Accraz! Basis International
Public Sector Aceounting Stenderds TF5ASs)
Amandments m the amplemantation guicance on deamed cost
i IFSAS 33 to make it consistent with the corz principles in the
Standatd

o

ii. Early adoption of standards

The University did not early - acdopt any new or amended standards in year ended 30%
June 2020.

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recogrnition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactens

Transfers from other governmeny entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government eniities are measured at
fair value and recognized on obtaining conirol of the asset (cash, goods, services and
property) if the transfer is free from condidons and it is probable tha: the economic benefits
or service potential related to the asset will flow to the University and can be measured
reliably. Recurrent granis arve recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Development/capital grants are recognized in the stelement of finencisl vosidon and
realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful Efe of the asseis that has
been acquired using such funds.

KEHARH LIMIVERSITY | &=



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i) Rewvenue from sxchange fransactions
Rendering of services

The University recognizes revenue from
rendering of services by reference to the stage
of completon when the outcome of the
transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage
of completion is measured by reference to
labour hours incurred o date as a percentage
of total estimated labour hours. Where the
contract outcome cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognized only to the extent that
the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized
when the significant tisks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods and when the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably
and it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential sssocieted with  the
transaction will flow to the buyer.

Rental incorae

Rental income arising from operating leases on
investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and
included in revenue.

Budget information

The original budget for FY 2019-2020 was
approved by the National Assembly in june,
2019, Subsequent revisions and additional
appropriations were meade to the approved
budget in accordance with specific approvals
from the University Council. The sdditional
appropriations are added to the original
budget by the University upon receiving the
respective approvals in order to corclude the
final budget Accordingly, the University
recorded additional appropriations of Kshs.
106,106,746 om  the 20192020 budgets
following the Council's approval.

The University’s budget is prepared on 2
different basis to the actual income and
expenditure disclosed in the financial
statements.

KIBABH UMIVERSTTY |

The financial statements are prepared on
accrual basis using a classification based on
the nature of expenses in the statement of
financial performance, whereas the budget is

d on a cash basis. The amounts in the
financial statements were recast from the
accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified
by presentation to be on the same basis as the
approved budget. A comparison of budget
and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable
basis to the approved budget, is then
presented in the statement of comparison of
budget and actuzal amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjusiments
to amounts in the financial statements are also
made for differences in the formats and
classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and
the approved budget.

A siatement to reconcile the actual amounts on
a comparable basis included in the statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts
and the actuals as per the statement of
financial performance has been presented
under secton xxx of these financial statements.

¢} Properiy, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated
st cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. When significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the University
recognizes such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized
in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied.

All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred.
Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange
transaction for nil or nominal consideration
the asset is initizlly measured at its fair value.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE

d) Intangibie assets

Intangible assets acquired separstely are
mitially recognized at cost. The cosi of
intangible assets acquired in a nor-exchange
transaction is their fair value at the date of
the exchange. Foliowing initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Intermally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is reflected in surpiug or deficit
in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assets is
assessed as either findte or indefinits,

¢) Research and develooment cosiz

The University expenses research costs as
incurred. Development cosis on  an
individual project are recognized as
intangible assets when the University can
demonstrate:

> The technical feasibility of completing the
assat so that the asset will be available for
use ot sale

» ilts intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asget

s irow the asset will rate future
economic benefits or service potential

= {The availability of
complete the asset

* TThe ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during development.

resources io

Following initial recognition of an asset, the
asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortization of the assst begins
when development is complete and the asset
is available for use. It is amortized over the
period of expected futare benefit. During
the period of development, the asset is
tested for impairment annually with any
impairment losses recognized immediately
in surplus or deficit.

£) nventeries

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial
recogniticn. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange ransactions (for
no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the
inventory is its fair wvalue at the date of
acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its
present location and conditions are accounted
[or, as follows:

» {Raw materials: purchase cost using the
weightzd average cost method

+ ZFinished goods and work in progress: cost
of direct materizls and labour and a
proportion of manafacturing overheads based
on the normal opersting capacity, but
excluding borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured
at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
However, to the exteni that a class of inventory
is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that class of inventory is
measured at the lower of cost and current
replacement cost.

MNet realizable vaiue is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or
distzibution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when
deployed for utilization or consumption in the
ordinary course of operations of the University.

g} Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the University
has a present obligation: (l=gal or constructive) as
a result of a past eveni, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to
setfle the chiigation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amourni of the cbligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where the University expects some or all of
a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the statement of financial
verformance net of any reimbursement.

Coniingeni liabilities

The University does not recognize a
contingent iiability, but discloses details of
any contingencies in the notes to the
financial statements, unizss the possibility of
an outflow of rescurces embodying
economic benefits or service potential is
remote.

h) Mature and purpose of reserves

The University creates and maintains
reserves in terms of specific requirements.

Hevaluation Resesrves

This represents the change in values of
asgets after a revaluation that was
undertaken during the FY2013/2014. It
represents the value of assets previously
owned by Kibabii Diploma Teachers
Training College transferred to Kibabii
University.

If the carrying amount of a class of assets is
increased as a2 result of revaluation, the
increase is credited directly to revaluation
surplus. If the carrying amount of 2 class of
assets is decreased as a result of revaluation,
the decrease is recognized in surplus or
deficit. Revaluation increases and decreases
relating to Individual assets within a class of
property plant and eguipment are offset
against others within the class. Some or the
entire revaluation surplus included inm net
assets/equity in respect of property, plant
and equipment is transferred directly to
accumulatec surpluses or deficit when the
assets are derecognized either by disposing
or retizing it.

Capiial Reserves

This represents the values of Assets
capitalized as a result of Capital development
funding received from the Government of
Kenya through the Ministry of Education
state department of University Education.

Revenue Reserves

This represents Surpius or deficits incurred/
accumulated over time by the University as a
resuli of its activities.

i) Changes in aeccounting policies and
estimaies

The University recognizes the effects of
changes in accounting policy retrospectively.
The effects of changes in accounting policy
are applied prospectively if retrospective
application: is impractical.

j) Employee benefits
Retirement benefit plans

The University provides retirement benefits
for its employees. The University operates a
defined contribution plan under which the
University pays fixed contributions into a
separate fund, and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The coniributions to fund obligations for the
payment of retirement benefits are charged
against income in the year in which they
become payabie.

k) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange
on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors
or debtors denominated in foreign currency
are reported at the statement of financial
position reporting date by applying the
exchange rate on that date. Exchange
differenices arising from the settlement of
creditors, or from
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the reporting of creditors at rates different
from those at which they wers initially
recorded during the period, are recognized
as income or expenses in the pericd in
which they arise.

I} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against
qualifying assets as part of property, plant
and equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over
the period during which the asset is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings
have been incurred. Capiialization ceases
when construction of the asset is compleie.
Further borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of financial performance.

m! Related pasties

The University regards a related party as a
person or an entity with the ability to exert
conirol individually or joinily, or to exercise
significant influence over the University, or
vice versa. Members of key management are
regarded as related parties and comprise the
University Council, the Vice Chancellor and
Senior managers.

n) Cash and cash eguivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and cash at bank, shori-term: depesits
on call and highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less,
which are readily convertible o known
amounts of cash and are subject fo
insignificant risk of changes in value, Bank
account balances include amounts held at
various commercizl banks at the end of the
financial year,

e TN R g e e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE

e e T

a) Comparative figurss

Where necessary comparative figures for the
previous financial year have been amended
or reconfigured to conform to the required
changes in presentation.

p) Subsequeni evenis

There have been no evenis subseguent to the
financial year end with & significant impact
on the financial staternents for the year ended
Tome 30, 2020,

5 SIGNTFICANT JUDGMENTS AND
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the University's financial
statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates
and assumpiions that zffect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, 2ssets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of coniingent
Labilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However,  vncertzinty  about  these
assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjusiment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.

Estirnates and assamgziions

The key asssumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reperting date, that have a
significant risk of caosing a materiai
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The University based iis
assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial
statermnents were preparad.
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However, existing circumstances  and
assumptions about future developments may
change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of
the University. Such changes are reflected in
the assumptions when they occur. IPSA51.140

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets
are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and vaiue from

disposal:

+ The condition of the asset based on the
assessment of experis employed by the
University

« The nature of the asset, its susceptibility
and adaptability to changes in technology
and processes

+ [The nature of the processes in which the
asset is deployed

« jAvailabiity of funding to replace the
asset

» |Changes in the market in relation to the
asset

Depreciation is calculated on straight line
basis, at annual rates estimated to write off of
carrying values of the assets over their
expected useful lives, Assets acquired during
the year are depreciated from the date of
acquisition.

The annual depreciation rates in use are:

Building 2%

Furniture, plant and equipment 12.5%

Motor Vehicles 25%

Computers 33.3%

Library books 20%

Freehold land is not depreciated as it 15
deemed to have an infinite life

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management
determined an estimate based on the
information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions is included in
Mote 28.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provisions are measured at the management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to

settle the obligation at the reporting

daie, and

are discounted to present value where the effect

is material,

Provision for bad debis

The University makes provisions based on

6. {a) OTHER ORCANIZATIONAL

ol | il

s s

CRANTS

i Aciaal

i Ewropean Union= AHEAD
Prriaact 2,135,302 3,340,013
MRF Research Grambs 19

| Students 3,627,600 341,000
Mational Drara & Films Festival

| Comumities = 3818330 4
HRFR:Hahd:LCmtsIC_T_ 22266419 2740540
Mational Multipiication Traiming

3 DaAD 1,223 533 -

Totzl Gther Organization
Grasts poasaeas | 1THREAT

6. (b) OTHER ORCANIZATIONAL GRANTS

KISABI UMIVERSITY |

Other Orgeaization granis Recognized in the
Zie Imancial file 29,553 044
%.eas: Conditienat Grant funds recelved in
I ods e
WRF ICT gran: funds received in FY2012201%
Tie:ls F¥201 (21 Bo6. 415
Add: Un expesded grants recelved daring the
defe imeome
Commanwealth of Leaming- Technalogy-
| Ensbjed Learning 585,154
|_Amouat Recognlzed in Cush flow statement | 1671709
20



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

7. {8} PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS AMD

DOMATIONS
Descri |.:':t1'1..u1 ' |1 208-2020 HIIB-20019
{ Eshs. kshs,
Abno Softwares |
Limited : 100,000
Bungoms West
Medl':ﬂ-ﬁmﬂﬂ o 1mmu
Bungoma Chemist
- 20,000
Barowest i
- 7,000
Eldoret Hospitsl |
! 100,000 -
Rick Sclence World |
{ - 10,000
T
Mediheal Hospital f
& Fertility Cenire ¢ i
Lid i !
i - 100,000 !
Stanbic Bank i
i - | 50,000
]
Staff Membars !
- 3,800
|
Donation of books
| 46,000,000 [ 1,349,000 ¢
others i 'f
] - 110,000
i (] []
; i 8E 100000 1,568 B

7. (=)

PUBLIC COATRISUTIONS AND
DORLATIONS

[ Public
Contribations
i end Donztions |
! Becogrized in
e Skztement of
Finartal

46,000,000

100,000

20 B=Z00A)

KShs

pes

211 8-2019

K&5hs

130,424,759

130,626,755

P

8 (b} TRANSFERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

| Mameaof the

Amot

Amont
diferred under
delerred incmme

| dvmount

recognised in

Total grant incoms
during the year

| |:.:||,-il.|| fund

209211200

Mindstry of i

Educatlon, State ! |

Department for y

University ! I |

Education and i

e 562,454,370 i 130,422,759 792,479,129 792,E79,129

1ol 562,458,370 i 130,424,759 752,275,123 792,879,129 |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DEFERRED INCOME RECOGNIZED

Tuiticn fees 5 GHLE A0
Tetal Bavenue frem the Rendering of Services 2 15,815,650 I

10. (a) RENDERING OF SERVICES - TUITIONM FEES

FT9-2120

Diescrpluon

Kshs

Tuition fess 275,795,495 540,668,426
275,795,895 | 340,669,426

10. (b) RENDERING OF SERVICES - TUITION FEES

REendesing of Services - Tuition Pee Recognizes in the Statement of Finaneial Performance 275,795,495
Add: s

Taition fee Earmed in prior period but received in FY2019, 2020 Decreass in Receivables irom Exchange

Transactions 5,523,491
pan cash income - Degreass in pro vision for bad debts 289,918
Less:

Tuition fee received in prior period but d during FY 2019/2020 id feas) 15,246,233 |
Amount recognized in the st terment of cash flows 270,162,670

11. 16U INCOMES

22000

hoshs.

IGU Incomes

Catering Income 6,615,556 8519.325
Arcommodation Income 16,544,010 16,030,352
Farm, Grass Cutiing 87,675 1,270
FPhotocopying & Bindsry Services 46,225 11,070
Hire income 372,76l 1,267,105
Total Revenus Srom the Sais of Goods 23, 7ob 216 2622910

12. RENTAL REVENUE FROM FACILITIES AND EQUIPIMENT

K. 121 UHEH=207T4

Descri preom
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT Sa

13. {2} USE DF GOODS AND SEQVICES

' Description 2079-2020 | 2018-2019
Kshs. | Kshs.
Activity Fee 5,934,000 6,845 850
Agency Fee 184 5566 | 241328
Amenity Fee 5,839,000 6,886 850
Application Fee 1,055,61% , 788,570
Alumni fee 2,815,000 1 2,213,000
Fines & Penalties 176,004 | 3,726,650
Computer Fees 29,908,500 5 35,683,125
Examination fees 7,883,700 1 8,847,500
Identity Card 427, 30 : 451,250
SGC Collections 3,084,500 - 2,740,160
Library fes 506,503 | 534,000
| Medical Subsidy 9,757,000 11,262,240
Registration Fee 962,000 989,500
School Practice & Attachment/log 18,324 500 ; 23,330,770
Supervision 7,263,500 7,963,560
Thesis Examination Fees 4357.500 5,030,500
CUE Fees 1,415,000 1,501 525
KUCCPS Fees 1,522 500 1 1,201,500
Graduation fee 8992 0 r 9,502,800
Workshops & Conferences Fee 201,500 | 381,466
Sundry Income | 234 745 551,500

Referral/Supplementary /Remzking & Course | o
Repeat ; TIE &N 1,704,771
L 112,716,762 ' 132, 410,835

13. (b} USE OF GOODE AND SEQVICES

[Use of goods and services - Amount Recognized in the statemaent 6f Financial I
 Pecformance ) 112,716,762

lesa; i
Decreage in refundable deposits from cuscorners ; 404,200
Ampunt recognized in the siatement of cash Aaws '! 112,311 552
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. OTHER INCOME

Dhecrease in othar provisions 554,732 L
Provision for bad and doubtful debis (Decrenss) 285,916 509 542 |
Decresse in provision(Leawe days) 35,495,816 2
Teotal ather income _ 40,370,524 509,547 |

15. {=a} EMPLOYEE CO8TS

Salaries and Wagas 658,320,795 575,117,825
Employee Related Costs - Medical Alds 33,198,185 25,734,060
| Part Time Payments 126,248,275 165,397,164
| 2017-2071CBA Arvesss 52,096,040 -
CBA Pension Arrears - 16,079,639
Service Gratulty Accrued 1.918.077 3,783,233 |
| Leave Day Accrued - 9,509,552 |
 INSSF Arrears - 280800
Employes Costs 431, 722373 BO7. 209,275 |

5. (b) EMPLOYEE €083

Compensation of Employees - Amount Recagrized In the statement of Financial Performance Bl 784,372
| add

Employee benefit gbligadon (Tocraass)
|_Less:

Provisions - Increase

Dacreass in provision/Teave deys)

§ Ampunt recognized i the starement of cash flows

10,996,260

(5474, 750
Bl4

BadE10.108

1. REMUMERATION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

Descriplinn 21920200

Kk,

Chairman's Homoraria

University Council emelurnens 17,556,064
Remunerabdon of Council Merbera 18,586,064 |
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17. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXFENSE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Description 20192020 | - H;|u;:|:i%
Kshs J w5k,
Property, plant and equipment 84 447 508 55,161 850
Bibangible cansls 9,738,552 9,038,952
Total depreciztion and amortization 55,481,550 ¢ 75,200,865 |

18. REPAIRE AND MAIMNTEMANCE

Dhesceiption

20119-2020

Hshs

Mzirkenance of Cataring & Hostsl Pacilities 4,075,370 2747715 |
ainterence of Flant, Furnituee & Equipmant 1,059,587 i 215,240 |
Maintenance of Building & Statlons 2271975 F 754330
Maintenance of Water Suppliers & Sewerage _ 1061168 i 1215857 |
Maintenance of Playgrounds & Parks - 220
Malrtenance of Computers 258,800
Metwork Installatdon and Mainienance expenses 361,500 625,556 |
Services Level Agreement (ABNO) expenses 2,714,400 2T1E400
Toal repairs and malntenance 1 11,513,200 ‘ 8,550,342
83
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

7. {a) GEMERAL EXPENGES

{92027

Research Project Expances

qA!u:ruu Assoriation Expengds

324,245
519,253
_ST,7%
17 643,740
91,50

14,360,087
377,515

240477
575,740

1,556,282
16,763,617
]Eﬂlm
2,187,257
10,626,580

328,120
Fub Infras-ruchure Exvipmen: Grant Expenses ZI40580
Income G ting Lndts en L =
Income Genarating Units Expenes 1541 17,648,557

{insurance and Lega® Exnenes 29 R
i ?3213&31
2,781,951
3335325
BH2,596
12,750,352
33,

1587717
1,364,903
2,470,130

5714899
3,170,166

3 585, 18¢
11,359,814 314 18,366,558
15,774,362 13,190,500
A07 8BTS & 187, D65
562,028 _ 204,066
3,106,345 L520,730
171510 1,993, 385
TILI_ 458,510
1,856,735 3215915
T AT BN 530,000
2,198,794 2,353,028

_LAZ8 A5
13462 708,320
7,535,108 10232617

Toral Sxpense: 154,567,780 AT ]
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15. (b) GERERAL EXPENSES

CGeneral Expenses - Amount Recognized in the statemeni of Financial Ferformance _.i' 1f4d

Less:

inventory (Decrease} : (2 357.503) |
| Increase in trade pavable | (32,408,553}

Drecrease in Provision {5354, 793)

Anronnt recopnized in the sistement of cach flows { 148,073,749

20, PUBLIC RELATIONS & MARKETING COSTS

2OT9=21120

TR0

Advestising & Publicity 1,619,280 | 3,535,350
Publishing and Printing 237,550 | 443,250
University Shows & Exhibilinag §31,112 | | 745,454
Toial PR & bdarketing Coste 7957 ' 4,728,684

21. GAIN ON FOREIGHN EXCHANCE TRANSACTION

| Description

Urrealized gain on foreign exchangs

Totel sther income

22 8. CASH AND CABH EQUIVALERNTE

20T | 3-8

lh“u.'ri.p{inn. 2015-1020 1

}..n]'p: -:- W Eanhs,
Current acoount 285,358,155 155,456,452
Fixad deposits accouns 2,080,000 1: 2,000,000
Others 4401 | 120,530
Total cashand cash equivalents 88,372,550 | 255,507 72

22 b. DETAILED ANALYEIS OF THE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEMTE

Finamcial Institution

Account msmbier

{11 9-2030

| SCCEW

ZOTR-TF G

Kshs,

4] Current scooonts

Kenya Commercial Bank Lirnited 1132024839 i08.561,716 S7AT7 473
Kenya Commercial Bank Limited 1134708375 ";IJ.?S'E,SE-E-_JL 54363254
Kenya Commercial Bank Limited 1137408286 22,365,220 ] 16,055 322
National Bank of Kenya Limitad 01281 076E72600 413,186 478,026
Mationel Bank of Kerya Lisnited 01002 076B72600 34,248,243 27136 628
Eeuity Bank Limited-508 0480261211508 41,596,507 | 15,466,137
Equity Bank Limited-858 OsG02517178%8 433,78 425,993
Standard Charterad Bank i_ulu:msmx 18,073,569 16,621,289
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| Parmily Bark Limised Q7ROO0297 46,926.216 49,017,507
Co-operative Bank of Kenya Ltd (1129669927300 i 70,223 15,135,068
H
- 1 b
Abga Bank Kenya FLC ANZRI5IE2E | BOE,025 1616135
Absa Bank Kenya PLC {Buro ) 2040024642 i 531,584 5,320
Absa Bark of Kenya Limited { Deollar ) 040024657 2,081 -
Sub- total | 236,368,169 255,486,482
k) Fized deposits account |
I
Equity Bark Limited D4BOBEE12597 i 2,000,000 2,000,000
Seb- total 2,009,000 2,000,000
e] Others{speciivt
cash in hand E . 120,590
v
Petty Cash 4,491 )
Sub- tokal §.491 120,530
Grand total { 288,372,660 257,607,072

Descriphion

| Current receivablze

23. RECEIVABLES FROM NON-ENCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2019-2020

Kshs.

201 5=201%

Kshs.

52,098,040

50,723,316

lechequer grants{Recurrent) - june '19

52,098,040

50,723,316

24, RECEIYVABLES FROM EXCHAMNGE TRANSACTIONS

2019-2020

Descri piir.m- 2018-2019
Kshs. Kshs.

Current recelvabiss
Studenis fees deblors 253,644,029 259,442,332
Lass: Provision for bad debis | (12,682,201 ) {12572.117)
Staff debtors 3,687,397 7,404 501
Cther debtors 9,712,795 10,010,795
Bank guaraniee 2,500,030 2,500,000
Total curreni receivables 256,862,020 266,385,511
Total receivables 256,862,020 266,385,511
a3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

25, IMVEMTORIES

' Description B i . )1 9-2020 I 2i8-2019
L Kshs.

Consumakle Stares 1,456,080 | 4,623,787
Medical Supplies & Laboratory Chernicals 1,367 480 | 2,111,495
Electrical, Bailding & Plumbing Materials 2,841,680 | 974,275
Caiering 632,339 | 786,825
Total Inventories ai Lowsar of cost and NRV B,098.575 | 8,456,382

KIEA BN LINIVERSITY | L]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM

27. INTANGIBLE ASSETI-SOFTWARE

' Description K 20192020 | U 20183019

: Kshs. | Kshs,
Cost |
At beginning of the year 27,156,005 | 27,146,000
Additions <] -
At end of the year 27,144,008 | 27,148,000
Additions-interral development - -
At end of the year 27,164,500 27,144 000
At beginning of the year 18,077,900 5,038,952
Amartization 9,028,952 9,038,652
At end of the year 27 115556 | 18,077,504
Impairment loss - -
At end of the year 27,116,856 | 18077904
NEBV 5 2705 ¢ 3,065,396

28. TRADE AMD OTHER PAVASLES FROM ENCHANGE TRANSAZTIONS

| Description | ~ | 2019-2020 ' 2018-2019

: Kshs. - | Kshs.
Trade payables ! 45,206,325 7 AT 704
Project Retention Money | 15766937 22,169,818
HELB accouni ] 2,629,736 < 004 462
CDF | 9,002,920 5,290,252
County Bursary 4,770,350 5,420,500
Other Sponsors 2 £22 189 E 2,416,100
Kibabii University Pension Scheme 418,186 | 428 025
Kibabii University Needy Studants Fund 2,452,743 Z 2,425,993
CBA Refund 2010-2013 Due 17,543,730 ' 17,643,730
KIBU Staff Recoveries x 261,084

| Student Liability Account 344,251 -
TUCEA 460,210 -
Total trade and other payables 101 420,581 58,577,768 ]

29, REFUNDABLE DEPOSIVE FROW CUSTOMERS

2ins-2o49

hescription i G-Iz

Rk, Bshs

Depasit on Staff House Rent m@': 158
L i
TOTAL i 52507650 | B2 550 |

KIBARL LINIVERSITY | 103



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. DEFERRED INCOME

Desgrifilion 200 8-
sl
NRF Research Grants ICT Hub 35,857,541
Commarwealih of Leaming- Technology-Enabl=d Learning 683,184 .
|_TOTAL 39678,125

21. EMPLOVEE BENEFIT OBLICATION

M a-2020 2001 5=20F] %

% s hs. Kshs
{ Third-party payments (Part-timwers claims] 45,035,720 45,443,493
| Pension Congributions Due from 2013-2017 CBA . 16,507,664
. Service Gratuity Due 26,261,502 24,349,475 |
| TOTAL 75,297,222 85,293,582

2. PAYMENTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

20192020 20182019

Descriplion

kushs

| PrepaidF |

Bl apn ', 24767912
Total Deposts !

i e | 24,767,512

33. CURREMT BROVISIONS

2017-2021 CTHA
Descriplion Leave provision Aurrears Other provision
Provision Tolals

KShs kShs KShs KShs

Balance at the beginning of
| the year 35455, 516 - 3627432 43,123,248
| Additional Provisiors ! 52,098,040 52,098,040
} Provision Utilis (39,495,816 ) - (3.127432) | (42623248}
: Total provisions - 52,098,049 500,000 52,598,040 |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

54. CASH GENERATED FROM OFPERATIONS

20192020 | 2018-2019
Kshs. | Kshs.
Surplus for the year Before Tt 873,752 10,337,755
Adjusted for |
Depreciation 93,481,560 | 75,200,542
Non-cash Cranis Received -46,000,0CC | 1,349,000
Unexpended Grants Utilized -22,866,215 0
Deifered Incoms 0 -19,815,650
Unrealized Gains Gi
Contribution to Provisions 0,474 792 ; 1,987,240
| Working Capital Adjustmens
| Increase/ Decrease in [nventnry 2,397,206 -8,414,000
Increase/ Decrease in Receivabies ':_ 8,148,767 | 46,900,510
Increase/ Decrease in Defarred Income | 6BE, 184 G
| Increase/ Decrease in Payahies t 21,097,562 | 73,781,436
B iidcreasef Decrease in Paymenis Received in : 15,446,352 23,702,268
Vance
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 51,846,610 | 157,625,275
RIBABI LIMIVERSITY | R ()
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The University's sctivites expose it to a variety of
financial risks including oredit and Lguidity risks
and effects of chenges In forsign currency. The
University's ove-all rlsk management programme
focuses on unpredictability of chenges in the
buginess enviromment and seeks o minimise the
potential adverse effect of such risks on its
performence by setting acceptable levels of risk. The
University does not Sadge any risks and has in place
policies t0 ensurz t~at credit is only extended to
customers with =r astablished cve it history.

The Uriversinvs Snencial visk maragement
objectives and poicies are detailed below:

i Creditrizk

The University [as cxposure to credit risk, which is
the zisk that = courcerparty wiil be unable to pay
amounts in fall when due. Credit risk arises from
cask and cash eguiveients. and deposits with benks,
as well as trade =nd ~ther receivables and available-
for-sale firancie! investments.

Management asrasses the crecit quality of each
rustomer. faking into eccount its financiai position,
past experience =nc other factors. Individual risk
limits a*s set bas=d on inemal or exiermnal
assessmient in acoordance with Lmits set by Counil.
The amotnts presentad iy the sitctement of financial
position are szt of allowances for doubthui
receivablss, estmeted By the University's
menagement besed on prior experisnce and their
gssessment of the current sconomic environment

The carrving amoun: of financie! assets recorded in
the financial statements repregering the University's
meximur exposure o credit -isk without taking
account ©f the value of any coilaterai obtained is
made up a5 foliows:

KIBABI UNIVERSITY |




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME!

Total amount ' Fully performing '

Kshs

Past due ' Impaired

Kshs kKshs

Kshs |

At 30 June 2020 :

Receivableas from i

exchange transactions 256,862,020 247,149,225 1  ©.712,795 0

Receivables from non- !

exchange fransactions 52,005,040 52,098,040 | { 0

Bank halances 288,368,169 288,368,169 | 0 0

i | serangous| savasawm 371275 5

At 30 June 2019 1' j

Receivables from 1 ;

exchange transactons 266,385,511 257,081,716 ¢ 2303,795 0

Receivables from non- E .

exchange transactions {  50,723.315 20,723,316 0 0
! .

Bk balances | 255486482 255,486,482 ] 94 2
| .

Tatsl | 572,595,305 563,291,504 | 5,302,795 o

The customers under the fully pecforming
category are paying their debts as they
continue trading. The credit risk associated
with these receivables is minival and the
allowance for uncollectible amounts that the
University has recogrised in the Hnancial
statements is considered adequate to cover any
potentially  irrecoversble amounts. The
University has significant concenfration of
credit risk on amounizs due from Students.

The Council sets the University's credit
policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspecis
of credit risk management are oparatad.

ii. Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for Newidity risk
managemsnt rests with the Urdversity's

HIBARI LMOFERSITY |

Council, who have baill an appropriaie
liquidity risk menagement framework for tha
nt of the Urndversity’s short,
medium and long-tesmn funding and Liquidity
management requirements. The University
manages Hguidity risk through continuous
monitoring of forecasts and achual cash flows,

The tabie below repraseriz czsh flows payabie
by the University vnder non-derivative
financtal Hsbifites ©y their remaining
contractual matarities a: ‘he raporting date,
The amounts disclosed in the tmble are the
contractuai undiscountes cash fiows, Balances
due within 12 momths sgual thelr carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Less than

1 month

Bebween 1-3

months

Over 5
months

Total

The Courncil has put in place an internal audit
function to assist it in assessing the risk faced
by the University on an ongoing basis,
evaluate and test the design and effectiveness
of its internai accounting and operational
comtrols.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in
market prices, such as interest rate, equily
prices and forsign exchange rates which will
affect the University’s income or the value of
its holding of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to
manage and conirel market risk exposures
within  acceptable  parameters,  while
optimizing the return. Overall responsibiiity
for managing merket risk rests with the Audit
and Risk Managemen: Committee.

The University’s Fmance Department is
responsibie for tne development of detailed
risk management policies (subject to review
and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committes) and for the day to day
implementation of those policies.

KIEARI UNMIVERSITY |

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
At 30 June 2020 !

& i
Trade payables WSS | yoms7n|  S977BB2M| 216395928
Provisions 52,598,040 0| 0 52,598,040
Deen Reocored in 0 0 ol 24767912
advance
Refundable Depcsits .
bt 0 0 8,257,650 8,257,650
Total 1@,1?9,92 $9,005720  3,035974| 302,019,530
At 30 Tune 2079 .?
Trade payables 52,274,227 88,856,187 51,916,476 193,046,885
Provisions 2,546,800 26,658,782 | 40,076,448 69,282,030
Fees Received in _
sy 21,424 253 16,647,466 | 2,142 425 40,214,144
Caution Money L 1 8503950 8,503,950
Total 76,245,275 | 132,162,435 | 102,635,299 | 311,047,009

hiarket Risk There has been no change to the University’s

exposure to market risks or the mamner in
which it manzages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign Currency Risk

The Unjversity has transactonal currency
exposures. Such exposure arises through
purchases of goods and services that are done
in currercies other than the local currency.
Invoices denominated in foreign currencies
are at timss paid after 30 days from the date
of the invoice and conversion at the time of
payment is done using the prevailing
exchange rate.

The carrying amount of the University's
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary labilities at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

The University manages foreign exchange
risk form future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and labilities by projecting
for expected sales proceeds and matching the
same with expected payments.

s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

currencies
Kshs

At 30 June 2020 {
Firancial asseis
Investments u o 3
Cash 287,838,655 | 533,565 288,372.660
Debtors | 255,862,020 iy 256,862,020
Total financial agzels sdd 700,715 533,565 545 234 680
Financial Liabilitles '
Trade and other payables 300,874,136 1,145 364 302,019,530
Borrowings 0 G 0
Total financial liabilities 300,878,136 1,185,39¢ 502,0119,530
Net foreign cusrency
asset/(liability) § 245 826,579 611,435 243,215 153
A 30 Jume 2015
Financial assate : | 'L
Investments ] N A -
Cash : 255,501,752 5,320 | 255,607,672
Debiors 766,385,511 -4 266,385,511
Total finarcial assets 521,987,263 5,325 | 521,992,583
Financlal Liabiliies :
Trade and cther payables 308,730,652 - 308,730,652
Borrowings : -4 - |
Total financial abilities 308,730,652 o3 308,730,652
Met foreign currency
asset/{liability} i 213,255,611 5,320 213,261 933 {

Foreign currency sensiivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect on the University’s sistemernt of comprehensive
income on appiying the sensitivity for a reasonable possibie change in the sxchange rate of the
three main transaction currencies, with all other variabies held constant. The reverse would also
occur if the Kenya Shilling apprecizted with all other variabies held consiant

Change in

currency rate

Kshs

Effect on Profit

before tax

Kshs .

Effect on
equity
Kshs

[ 1
Euro i 10% | 54,435 BF | !
UsD 10% | 2,081 | '
2019 i
Euro 10% 552 |
USD 10% -

KIBAB LMWIVERSITY |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the University’s financial condition may be adversely affected as
a result of changss ir. interest rate levels. The University's interest rate risk arises from bank
deposits. This exposes the University to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk
exposure arises mainly frem interest rate movements on the University's deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured io bank with institutions that
offer favourable interest rates.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair vatue
Disclosures of fair velues of financal i=struments not measured at fair value have not been made

because the carrying amounts are 2 reasonable approximation of their fair values.

iv) Capiial Risk Management

The objective of the University’s capital risk management is to safeguard the University's ability
to continue as a going concern. The University's capital siructure comprises of the following
funds:

20N8-2019

" 2019-2020

Kshs Kshs

Revaluation ressive 1,434 485,296 1,434,485,296
Retained sarnings 280,433,947 238,754,018
Capital reserve 790,997,455 701,378,872
Total funds 2 505,916,598 2,374,618,186
| Total borrowings 0 0
Less: cash and bank balances 288,372,660 255,607,072
Net debi/ (excess cash and cash equivalents) -288,372,660 -255,607 072
Geaving -12 -11

36. RELATED PARTY BALANCES
Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the University include those parties who have ability to
exercise contral or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.
Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Govermment of Kenyse

The Government of Kenya is the principal owner of the University. Other related parties include:

i. The Matonz] Governanent;

i, The Ministzy of Education, State Department for University Bducation and Research;

iii. Key manageimnent;
iv. University Council;

KIBARI LUMINERSITY |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME!

2009-2020) 2018-2019

Kshs

Transactons with reizted paclies
a) Granis from the Governmend !

Grants from National Govt 610,256,330 | 605,440,687
Grants from County Government { : 4]
Donations in kind 0 0
Total 610,256,330 605,440,687

b} Key management compensation

Councils’ emoluments | 18,546,064 | 16,065,810
Compensation to the Vice Chancellor E 9,201,944
Comgua-nsaﬁc}n o key management } ! 17 216,286

Totzl i 18,545,008 £2 514 040

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities S e R B019- 2030 5SS 20180019 |
Kshs | Kshs

Casze Number Bungoma NC Petition no 15 of 2016,
David Murambi and two {2} others VS the Couniry
Government of Bungoma and Kibabii University for

trespass o properiy.

;

i 2500000 § 2,500,000
Bungomsa Employment and Labour Relations Court ] i
Cause No. 61 of 2018 walubengo Singore Mulizo VS f i
Kibabii University. The lizbility is yet to be determined - i
Kisumu Employment and Lzbour Relations Court
Canse No.blof 2018 Frof. Shem OAywa V5 the
Cheirman of Council, the Chancelicr Kibapii University
and Public Service Commissior., The liability has nct
been determined
Bungoma CMC MC ELC No 14 of 2020. Beatrice N. :
Wanjala and another VS County Commissionsr, |
County Commandant and Vice Chancellor - Kibapi :
University. An injunction restraining the respondenis
from interfering trespassing, developing, construciing,
or in any other way interfering with the Plamtiif's LR
Mo Eest Bukusu/ North Kandwyi/B88 . - .
Bank guzrantees in favour of Toial Kenya 2500000 ! 2,500,900 |
Total i 2,500,006 2,500,000 |

PR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments 2018-2019

Kshs Kshs

Authorised for 130,310,000 61,700,000
Anthorised and coniracted for ¥ 130,424,759
| Total 130,310,000 192 124 759

(NB: Capital commitments are commitments to be carried out in the next financial year and are disclosed
in accordance with IF5AS 17) -
39, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIUD
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.
40. ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The University is a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the Minisity of
Education. Its ultdmate parent is the Government of Kenya.

41, CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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APPENDIX % CROGRESE O FOLLOW UPr  OF AUDITOR
RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external suciior, ard management
comments that were provided to the auditor. We have norninated focz: persors to resolve the
various issues as shown below with the associzted time frame within wiich we expect the
igsues to be resolved.

KEeferen J
Focal Poind
ce Mo, ; ;

Status: Timelrame

o the sue ) Observations from .
syletii] Management commenls
o 4 g« .

T, AR R e e s i e D R R T S e -k P e 1 11| IR 1 ¥ 1

K port

Long Overdue Shedenks Ths outstending balance of
Fee Debiota

The statement of financial | 905 3931807 is being
position undsr note Z1(a) te | investigated by the institution
the finamncial saements

reported tolal crsreat thactigh deblor's
receivabies of Ksha 264, 385, | clrcularlzaton to escertain the
511 asatii!ﬂ}:me 209, recovesability siatus hence the
Incinded in the vecelvebles
badanoe of Kshs, 258, 385, nar-recoverable debis chall be
511 was student debtor’s fes | rerpmmended to the

tetalling Kshs 255, 243, 232
Aging analysis revealad
that an smount of Kshs 35, | off. The information shall be
812, 807 remained availed for verifieation during
cutstarding for ever 1 year !

in conbraveriEan of the thie next andie exancize,
University's fees

Though clavge 14,2 of the
student’s handhbook Frof 5. Shivairo i iy
stipulaes that a student can TVC[ASA} it el i
be ailawed ta defer shadies
for a period of three years
ard the management
indicated that the cages are
being irvesizgated through
deisboe’s clecibarization to
ascertein the secovrerability,
the exerclss had nod been
conclieded as 2t Hme of
andit.

Undwersity Council for wiite-

In the circumsiances, the
recoverability of the shudent
Fee debtor balanoss of
Ks5hs 53, 812, BO7 couid nmot
be confirmed and ihe huge
fees arreers conbnus ko
irripect negaiively on the
Urdversiby's budgst
implementation dus ta low
revenies sollection,
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Chrer Bxpendikirs on
Emplover Costs
The satement of
fimancial performance
under niote 14 reflects an
ernployes cogls by
ishs 809, 535, 532,
Howaver, analytics
procedure comclocied on
ihe fnamci=! siatements
reveslsd that the
emplayes cost congttikes
63% of the total secelpts
of Fgha 1, 280, 541,516
COMPTiSITE MEVeTaes
from both exchange and
non-schemnge
eansactons, and capital
grants. This cofiravenss
Sectivn 25(1a) of the
Public Finencial

ot Art
Maticnal Government
Feguiations), 2075, which
puts a cap 2t 35% of the
total receipis.
In the circumstances, the
University operated in
ireach of the law,

i
Managrement camments

Finance Meansgement Act, 2002 and its
regulations, 2015 5 3% of the iotal
reverna, the Univeszity could not attain
this requirement becanse of (ks context as
a service indusiry.

The core mandate of the University is
e provision of quoality feaching
vesearch and extenslon services, These
ate lahour intensive as the University is
required to employ qualified academic
and administrative staff to achieve iis
mendate and o adhere o the
Commission for University Educztion
(CUE} regulations. This is the main
meagon why the Undvarsity”s incurred the
largwsi cogt on salaries.

According ta the 205 CUE guidelines
on establishment of a new Universities
in Kenya, Chapter & saction 1 subsection
2; Each department should havea et least-

a O profesess/ Agsociste
Professor
o Two other acadernde stadf ai the

lewel af lecturer {FhD helders)
The Commisgion for  Umniversaly
Educston, Universiies Standards and
Guidelinas, 2014 FROG/STD/ 17 further
guides on the qualification of scademic
progremme heads, heads of scademic
programme  specialization areas, the
ratio af full Hme to part time academic
staff members, minimum qualificsitans
for academic staff, lacturer: student ratdo,
mawimuzm number of stodents &n
academic saff can supervise in amy
given academic year and the meximom
Iechurer workload.
The University cannot at this Sme
reduce the rumber of employees and is
required to increase the numbsr to 527
un frem the eusrent 415 to operate at the
optimum thresh held. Inciuded in thess
costs ere payments made o part tme
lecturers who heve not besn employed
by the Univessity on permanent and
pensionable terms and offer their
gervices to bridge the gap in teacking
staff that is experienced by the
University at present,
The University belng young siill has
very low student mimbers while the cost
of teaching is not dependent on the
studant mumbers,
In order to mitigate the situation the
Urniversity is aggressively working om
the review and development of
PO that ere merket driven im
ordsz to atiract more stedents which will
in-harn ralse the Urniversity's revenues
and reduce this percentage.

Prof. Donald

DVC (AFD)

WLP

Conbinmens

KIEARI LFNNWERSITY |
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Lack of Ethnic Diversity in
Gtaff Rporainent

Audit verificeHon and snelysis
procedurs performed on the
payroll revealed that, outod
Four hundred and sixteen (415)
employees, three hundred and
nineteen (319] reprasenting
76.7% are from the dominent
Luhya ethnic comprmiiy.

Consaquantdy, the University
geaff establishment end nesr
appoiniments during the yaar
failed to promote-athric
diverzity in line article 20 of
the constitution and secon
i) of Natdone! Cohasion snd
Integration Arct, 25 which
requires that no public
estabiizhenent shall have moss
Ehan ane third of its staff from
the szroe ethnic community

The University Is making eficris o

embrace  diversity In ils
recruibment although st
feorn  the

applicants  comne
expansive Lrhya community that
comprise of more than 18 sub
tribes.

The majority of sl ae
adminisitative and are in the lower
cadres which do not  atact
applicants from other parts of the
country beranse of low wags rate,
The Undversity hes put m place
mezsures oo ensure sthrde diversity
in future recruitment processes so
gs by reduce the imbalance. The
Universiey has mitiated messores
ta reduce the Imbslavee  For
example in the op mansgeeest
positions there is ethnic divessity
amang the positon holders.

DVC (AFD)

Conbmious

Iregular Variation of
Construction of Academic
Block Phase [T (Main Works)
Contract

Incinded in the property, plant
and equipment balance of
Kshs2, 093, {70,461 under note
23 o the financial statement
are buildings with a net book
valuz of Kshs 897, 851,557, Cut
of the buildings Apure, the
Undversity awerded & contract
bo & boesl contractar for the
comsiraction of Academic
Block Phasge IT [Wain Works)
under contract
NoEIBUCC 50,/ 14-15 warth
Fshs 306, 759,000 However,
raviewr of the Enal sccoant
raveelad that the Undveralty
verled the contract through
omission of works, price,
guantity, measoraments and
imtroduction of exira works by
Esha 15, 977,020, Though the
varigHong wee raquested
throgh gibs inshructons and
appraved by the accoumbing
officer, they were not
accompented by a certificae
from the tanderer making &
justification for such cost in
fine with section 139(2) of the
Pubdic Procusement and Adset
Diisposal Act, B35,

In the circemsiances, it was not
possible to egcertain whether
the Urnivarsity zot value for the

money paid on the project

Tha variations were done towards
the and of the projact hance the
arnount of Kehs 16,577,220 was
covered in certfcabes numbes
thres (3) and four (4) ettached Ior
your warification

Prof. Donald
I, Slamhe
DVC (AFD)

Bepnived

30t June, 2020
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Tielaywed Delivery of 2
Comiract to Supply, [natall,
Testand Commission a CCTY
Surveillance Syaes

Irvluded in the ootal general
expenses Dpure of Ksha 219,
437,973 under neake 18 to the
expenditurs of Kahs 13, 190,
10 in respect of security

It i5 brue that Contractor did
inform managemeant that
installation and testing of OCTV
system had been fnalized and
imwited the users for training.

W subsequenily called for pre-
hand over inspection with
Contracior and following issaes
arose.

{i} Thase ware 16 CCTV cameras
that hiad not be acHwated becauss
of missing on incompetibla
gwitehes, That is existing switches
+hat had no power over Etherraet

services. Review of payment | {POE) and therefore could net be
records reveples that s local used in the activaton of ameras.
consatan: was gwarded & The Commities had requeshed
tender to suzply, install, and | variationof contract o allow for
test and commissiona OCTV | inclusion of thess switches that
surveliance sysem ai the had mot been included in the 85
University on 27 July 2018, The | The Committes sought authozisy
project was fo be completed in | of Management. The Contractor
twaben (12 weeks, was gsked bo supply these switches
Howgver, the conirector so that during handover and
requesied for extension of time | commissioning alf cameras shakl
by a period of twenty (20 have be acivated. The Contractor
wasks on 15 December 2018 is importing the switches. Hence
and eommitted to complete the | commissioning cannot be done Tut | o o o1
project by 31 June 2019, will be done as soon as the i 5‘1 ; Resolved | 20 fune, 2020
O 10 Jume I0LS, the contractor | switches ars installed. I'.'I‘.-.?'C (AFD)
informed the University's (i1) During pre-hand over meating
management thet the w tested the cameras operation
installgtion and sesting of the | from control room and found out
CCTV system bad been that performance wag wanting. We
finalized and irvited the users | realized that optical fiber
far & trafring. The project was | connection betwesn the server and
however yet to be handed over | library was slow, The alternakive
ard commissioned as a the wray bo Instell B new fAbre cable
time of auditin Angust 2019, | and/orbay media conwverters, The
Though the mansgement other alternative was o
availed for audit verifications | redistribute the NVR s that one
niew periormance bond by the | NVR serves the library and isin
contrachor execubed on 15 the control room, second Hhe eerves
Creinber 2719, the contractsr the main administration block and
was not on site 2= et the time | third serves the academia, The last
of audit erd it was not nption was chosen for it hed ne
ascertainatle when the project | extra financial implication.
wonld be delivered as per the | (i) There was an issae with
specifleations. storage capacity, so the Coatractar
ised to make good of His and
Consequently, the University | supply the appropriate memory.
did not obtain veiue for money | It is the considered opinion of
in the implemeriation of the | Menagement that onice the abave
syshem. {asues are sorted the CCTY system
shall be commdssioned, the
Contracior issuad with complesion
cartificate and paid his dues (5e=
THOHC. 6 attached),
1ld
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Weaknesses in Infermatian and
Commuaicafion Techaalasy
({CT) Coaniral Envirenment
Review of the vniversity ICT
governanee docaments ang
inferviews with the menagement
ravealed the bollewing sipnificens
wiaaknesses in the ICT control
anviransnent;

i Mom-establishenent of an [ZT
strategy commithes at the conmneil
leyml

if. Lack of defined ICT eraining
program on key sfi membars.
i Lack of forrsally docusnented
and approved processes (o
manage upgractes mads to s
fimancial / per,

infiormaiion syshems,

#v. There i no foronal change
requast docementaHon
sampleted indicating ﬂ'rachmga
to be mace and the ressons for el
changes b She fnancial spstems
for By apstem ubprades

| v. There are no policies in piace

wihich cover phipsice] scceas o
sanattive ICT environments 0.g,
server rooms during offics! and
by wark heors,

wi. Thers are no policies and
procedures in plece to cover
environmaental contuols. In
addivon, no decwmented and
fedred smergency procedurs has
been putin place.

vil The University does not hawva
an [CT conbnuliy and disacbey
recovery plan. Tha Entarprise
Fapoume Planning (ERF) systai
18 get 5 back up daiy. Fowevar,
such backups exe not verified amd
checked for succesatal
compleiban. For exeraple, the laai
vezification was done on 15t
Fedruary 2019,

viil, Thare is no formally
cocumented end approved user
manzgement siandards and
procedures. In addibion, there are
no processas in place to reviawr
user &0cess rights on the system
and if the rights are m Hne with
ix. The University does notuss
ihe Hmatehls modiabe which iz
part of the ERT system, 2
Tiecassiy whern sart dome
bacherers, bath internal and
extarnal meke peyreent clajses,

Conasguenthy, the universn
faces the risk of distupdon of
sEryises i cage of disazsers. and
chae ko unguiherized ICT
infrastruchure access and system
char

{1} The Management will write 2
oroposal io Undversity Counecil
requesting for the formetion of such
& comunittes beded en this audic
finding.

(i) The Univerasty bans gerer: wiil
588 in it these is dafined traming
progracm for TTT ataff. But for start
all marnbers of ICT wnill be regquined
b underiake the cyber securiiy
raming this fnancial year. Buz
detziled prograra will have
b e deraloped

{i) A documented and spproved
process will be developed

(v} There is & drali chenge
managament palicy, The pokicy will
be developed via the various
comunitiess of the Univenity and
HAnalhy gent to Council for apperoeal,
Attached is a draft change
maragement policy as DOC4

{v} The Universily is implemeniing
the informabion secuniy
management spstem (155} and will
fachor this in the documentation end
put amphasis Suring the launch af
BEME

(vi) The Director [CT will enguore thet
back up are verified by ihe Syeiem
Adminisirator as par back up
proesduiTe.

{vil) T b addressed via [Shis

tviid) To be addresaad by the
development af the upars standards
and requirements,

(i) Teedrdng and use of the Hme
tahling mndule will alen ke
implemented.

The Universiby bansgacnant taliea

nobe of the audit quaries and wEuse

themn to enhanes seciariby of 107
BABELS

Praf Domeld M
Sdamiba
DG [AFTY

W.ILE

Comtineoos

Vice Chancalicy

DATE: ...

Chalrraar of the Couteil

(1} | S SE O —_—



APPENDIX Il: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE UNIVERSITY

Projects
Projects implemented by the University Funded by developmant pariners

e HL/B 64,600,000 | 22816,419 50 54,600.000 | 54,600,000 MNRE

Hostel 178,739,820 | 148,584,800 100 | 17B.739.830 | 178,739,820 Gok

installation
and
Commissio
ﬁil"lﬂ of
CCTV

Surveillanc ]
& 7,981 000 7,607,150 100 7,981,000 [ 7981000 ALA

L e

WIHARN UKNNWERSITY |




APPENDIX Ill: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

| [ENTITY NAME | KIBABI UNIVERSITY
Break dows of Transters from the State Deparbment of Lniversity Bdocation and Reseamh
i FY 2019/2020

lmapsaction Reference Bank Siptement Amount (ki Bt tn which the

Dafe amanak relaty
i | Recurrent Granis

STATE DEPT UNI

[REC /0020013213 o OTBISN| I8/

STATE DEPT UNI/REC /0020014231 o 50,863,027 FY2010/ 2020

el 29.08.2(19

LN/ /REC/ DO204519 g 50,863,027 FY2018) 220

STATE DEPT UNL/ BEC/000001 4658 A 50,863,008 FYZU19,/2020

b

STATE DEPT UNI/REC/ 002001 4%84 ik 50,863.028 FY2019/ 2020

STATE DEPT UNI/REC/ 0020015304 i 50,563,028 FYMNS/ 20

STATE DEPT UNI/REC/ 002001534 ity 50,863,027 FY2019/2020

STATE DEPT LI/ REC/ 0020015801 b i 5,863,027 FY2018/2020

STATE DEPT U1/ REC/ 0020015939 FEIEES 50,363,028 FY2019/ 2020

|

STATE DEPT NI/ REC/ (020016215 it 50,863,027 FY2018,/2020

STALE DEPT UNI/REC /2016363 i 0,563,028 FYanesan0

STATE DEPY UNI/REC/ DO20016680 i 50,863,028 EY2MY,/20%0 |

2 6.0, 2020

STATE DEPT UNI/REC,/ 0000017141 50,563,027 FY2019/ 2020

otal 661,079,645.90
b. | Development Grants
i 1 H F

STATE DEPT UNi/ REC/ 0000001220 | 20.11.2019 B s A —

STATE DEPT NI/ REC/D000001277 | 13.43 2020 16,281344 FYB19/ 2020
Total 130,424,759

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconcited with the Ministry of Edocation

ﬁeyur}r Finance Cthicer Hend of Accounting Unit
KIDABU UNIVERSITY MIMISTREY OF EDUCTAIDN

|| L |y - 1
DAYE b} 1150 BRER:

EHABH LUNYERSITY
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